# COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN

**OAKDALE JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT** 

and

OAKDALE TEACHERS ASSOCIATION/CTA/NEA 2022 - 2025

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

ARTICLE	1: AGREEMENT	1
ARTICLE	2: RECOGNITION	2
ARTICLE	3: NEGOTIATION PROCEDURES	3
ARTICLE	4: MAINTENANCE OF BENEFITS	4
ARTICLE	5: JOB SHARE	5
ARTICLE	6: DISTRICT RIGHTS	6
ARTICLE	7: ASSOCIATION RIGHTS	7
ARTICLE	8: ORGANIZATIONAL SECURITY	9
ARTICLE	9: GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	l1
ARTICLE	10: TRANSFER PROCEDURE FOR CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL 1 Definitions 1 Criteria for Transfer or Reassignment 1 Voluntary Transfer or Reassignment 1 Involuntary Transfer of Reassignment 1	l6 l6 l7
ARTICLE	11: EVALUATION PROCEDURES2	20
ARTICLE	E 12: PERSONNEL FILES2	23
ARTICLE	E 13: PUBLIC CHARGES2	24
ARTICLE	E 14: NON-DISCRIMINATION/ACADEMIC FREEDOM2	25
ARTICLE	E 15: SAFETY CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT2	26
ARTICLE	E 16: CLASSROOM AIDES AND STUDENT TEACHERS2	28
ARTICLE	E 17: ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE2	29

ARTICLE 18: BEREAVEMENT LEAVE	31
ARTICLE 19: JURY LEAVE	32
ARTICLE 20: PERSONAL LEAVE	33
ARTICLE 21: INDUSTRIAL ACCIDENT AND ILLNESS LEAVE	34
ARTICLE 22: FAMILY CARE LEAVE	35
ARTICLE 23: EMPLOYEE DIFFERENTIAL LEAVE	37
ARTICLE 24: PERSONAL NECESSITY LEAVE	38
ARTICLE 25: SABBATICAL LEAVE  Eligibility  Formal Study  Independent Study  Travel  Procedures  General Regulations  Accident or Illness  Compensation	39 39 39 39 39
ARTICLE 26: HEALTH LEAVE	41
ARTICLE 27: VOLUNTARY DONATION OF SICK LEAVE TO ANOTHER EMPLOYEE	42
ARTICLE 28: LEGISLATIVE LEAVE	43
ARTICLE 29: CHILD-REARING LEAVE	44
ARTICLE 30: LEAVES	45
ARTICLE 31: HOURS/WORK YEAR High School Work Day Junior High Work Day Elementary Work Day	47 48
ARTICLE 32: SALARY SCHEDULE	57
ARTICLE 33: HEALTH & WELFARE BENEFIT	58

ARTICLE 34: PROFESSIONAL GROWTH	60
ARTICLE 35: SALARY SCHEDULE APPLICATION PROVISIONSSupplemental Pay	
Outdoor Education	63
Salary Schedule Column & Step Management	63
ARTICLE 36: EARLY RETIREMENT	64
ARTICLE 37: CLASS SIZE	66
ARTICLE 38: SUPPORT PROVIDER	68
ARTICLE 39: COMMITTEES	
ARTICLE 40: PAR	
PAR Components	
PAR Panel	
Peer Coaches	
Permanent Teacher Process	
Volunteer Teacher Participants	
Miscellaneous Provisions	77
ARTICLE 41:PERSONNEL ACTION	79
ARTICLE 42: SAVINGS	82
ARTICLE 43: REOPENERS	83
ARTICLE 44: SIGNATURE PAGE	84
APPENDIX A	85
High School Athletic Stipends	
Junior High School Athletic Stipends	86
Playoffs/Extended Competition	87
APPENDIX B: Extra Duty Schedule	88
APPENDIX C: Independent Study Instructor's Part-time Salary Schedule	89

APPENDIX D: Certificated Salary Schedule	90
APPENDIX E: Counselors & Speech-Language Pathologists Salary Schedule	91
APPENDIX F: Agriculture Teachers Salary Schedule	92
APPENDIX G: Extra Duty payment Timeline	93
APPENDIX H: Summer School Salary Schedule	94
ATTACHMENT 1: Grievance Procedure	95
ATTACHMENT 2: Certificated Evaluation Summary	96
ATTACHMENT 3: Counselor Evaluation Summary	98
ATTACHMENT 4: Request for Transfer	100

# **ARTICLE 1: AGREEMENT**

- 1.1 This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the Board of Education of the Oakdale Joint Unified School District, which together with its administrative staff and representatives shall be referred to in this Agreement as "District", and the Oakdale Teachers' Association/CTA/NEA, the exclusive representative of the certificated employees of the District, which together with its officers and representatives shall be referred to in this Agreement as "Association" or "OTA".
- 1.2 This Agreement is entered into pursuant to Chapter 10.7, sections 3540-3459 of the Government Code, which shall be referred to in this Agreement as "EERA".
- 1.3 This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect up to and including June 30, 2025.
- 1.4 Any individual contract between the District and a unit member shall be subject to, and consistent with, the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

# **ARTICLE 2: RECOGNITION**

- 2.1 The District recognizes the Association as the exclusive representative for all certificated employees excluding the Superintendent, Assistant Superintendents, Directors, Principals, Vice-Principals, District Coordinators, Psychologists, substitute teachers, summer school teachers (who are not a regularly contracted employee of OJUSD) and certificated personnel designated as management, supervisory and/or confidential by the District.
- 2.2 All charter school employees in certificated positions shall be employees of the District and shall be included in this Agreement.

# **ARTICLE 3: NEGOTIATION PROCEDURES**

- 3.1 The Association and the District shall submit their initial proposals together for a successor Agreement or any re-openers at the regularly scheduled September Board meeting.
- 3.2 Either party may utilize the services of outside consultants to assist in the negotiations.
- 3.3 Negotiations shall take place at mutually agreeable times and places.
- 3.4 The Association shall designate up to six (6) representatives exclusive of outside consultants, who shall each receive release time.
- 3.5 The District shall furnish the Association, upon request, all County and State reports necessary for negotiations, excepting those reports which are confidential.
- 3.6 No later than October 15<sup>th</sup>, the District shall furnish the Association with the placement of personnel on the respective salary schedules as of October 1<sup>st</sup>.

# **ARTICLE 4: MAINTENANCE OF BENEFITS**

- 4.1 The District shall not reduce or eliminate any benefits or professional advantages which have been specifically negotiated within this Agreement, unless otherwise mutually agreed upon by the parties.
- 4.2 Any individual contract between the Board and an individual teacher heretofore executed shall be subject to and consistent with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
- 4.3 This Agreement shall supersede any rules, regulations, or practices of the Board which are contrary to or inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement.
- 4.4 The provisions of this Agreement shall not be interpreted or applied in a manner which is arbitrary, capricious, or discriminatory. Rules which are designed to implement this Agreement shall be uniform in application and effect.

#### **ARTICLE 5: JOB SHARE**

- Job sharing shall refer to two (2) unit members on regular contracts sharing one (1) job assignment. Two unit members may share an assignment for a minimum of one (1) school year. A Job proposal for a job-sharing assignment for the following year shall be filed with the District no later than March 15<sup>th</sup>. The application shall include a specific plan including the names of the two participating teachers and their respective job-sharing schedules. The principal shall make appropriate recommendations and forward said application to the Superintendent or designee. The District shall approve or deny requests and notify the applicant, in writing. Notwithstanding other provisions of this Agreement, job-sharing unit members' wages, benefits, and paid leaves shall be prorated relative to the actual time worked. In no event shall the total amount of health and welfare benefits for the job-sharers exceed the amount the District would have paid if the position had not been shared.
  - 5.1.1 Each teacher shall attend Back to School Night, Open House and Parent Teacher Conferences.
- 5.2 Each job-sharing unit member shall receive a salary schedule increment as per section 36.19 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement
- 5.3 The job-sharers may cover for each other for day-to-day illnesses (Sub or trade days), at the rate currently authorized by the District for District-employed substitute teachers, with the mutual consent of the principal and the "covering" teacher.
- 5.4 Upon request of the two unit members, a job sharing assignment may be renewed provided the two (2) unit members notify the District prior to March 15<sup>th</sup>. In the event the District does not approve the continuance of the job-sharing assignment, or the unit members elect not to continue the job-sharing assignment, the unit members shall be returned to full-time assignments.
- 5.5 Job-sharing unit members may trade days with each other with the consent of the principal.
- 5.6 This article shall only apply to those unit members who have specifically been approved for job-sharing by the Superintendent or Designee and the Board of Trustees.
- 5.7 If denied, the job-share is subject to the grievance procedure but not binding arbitration.

# **ARTICLE 6: DISTRICT RIGHTS**

6.1 All matters not specifically enumerated as within the scope of representation under the EERA or as defined by PERB as negotiable are reserved to the District, except as limited by this Agreement.

#### **ARTICLE 7: ASSOCIATION RIGHTS**

- 7.1 As covered in Section 3543.1 of the EERA.
- 7.2 The following new bargaining unit member information shall be delivered to the Association President in digital format, no later than 30 days after the date of hire. The District will send the information via email in a password protected file:
  - 1. Name
  - 2. Home Address
  - 3. Phone Numbers (home and cellular)
  - 4. School site
  - 5. Grade Level/Assignment
  - 6. Date of Hire
  - 7. Seniority Date
  - 8. Full Time Equivalent (FTE) status
  - 9. Employment Status (ie. Probationary, permanent, temporary, etc.)
  - 10. Type of credential (ie. Clear, preliminary, short term staff permit, provisional internship permit, etc.)
  - 7.2.1 Periodic update of contact information: The District shall provide OTA with the information in 7.2 of all bargaining unit members on or before the last working day of September, January and May.
- 7.3 The District shall provide the Association with the names of all new members eligible for the bargaining unit within ten (10) days of his/her employment. Notice of the date, time and location of all bargaining unit member orientations will be sent by electronic mail, to the association president and vice president no later than twenty-one (21) calendar days in advance of the annual orientation meeting.
  - 7.3.1 A "new employee orientation" is the onboarding process for newly hired bargaining unit members, whether in person, online, or through other means, in which unit members are advised of their employment status, rights, benefits, duties and responsibilities, or any other employment-related matters. For purposes of this agreement, the District and OTA have agreed to call the time an OTA representative spends with a new employee the "OTA Orientation".
  - 7.3.2 The District will complete a new employee orientation and determine the start date of the new employee. The District will provide notice to the Association President when a new employee is cleared to begin working and a hire date has been established. The District will provide the Association President with a (10) day notice of when the OTA Orientation will occur, The OTA Orientation will occur at the new employee's work site or other site TBD and will be scheduled

- as to not cause any undue disruption to the employee's work tasks or the function of the site.
- 7.3.3 For any OTA Orientation, the association shall be provided with (60) minutes of uninterrupted time at the annual new teacher orientation. The Association shall be provided (30) minutes of uninterrupted time for any orientation held outside the annual new teacher orientation. District Administration will excuse themselves during the association time. The association is entitled to invite California teachers Association (CTA) endorsed vendors and CTA staff to the association portion of the orientation/on boarding meetings(s) and will have access to District audio visual equipment for association presentations.
- 7.4 The District will provide upon request of the Association president, a total of ten (10) full days of release time to be used by the President or his/her designee. These days will be provided at no cost to the District. Coverage will be arranged by the District.
- 7.5 The District will provide the Association President with a copy of the Public Board Packet prior to each school board meeting. The Superintendent and the OTA President/designee will make a good faith effort to discuss the board packet prior to each Board meeting.
- 7.6 The Association shall have the right of reasonable access to areas in which employees work, before work, during break periods, lunch periods and after work; the right to use District designated bulletin boards and mailboxes; and reasonable use of facilities and equipment and access to information necessary for the Association's representation of its members. The District can charge reasonable cost for use of copy machines and fax machines and any long distance phone calls.

#### ARTICLE 8: ORGANIZATIONAL SECURITY

- 8.1 Any unit member who is a member of the OTA/CTA/NEA or who has applied for membership may sign and deliver to the District an assignment authorizing deduction of unified membership dues, initiation fees and general assessments in the Association. Pursuant to such authorization the District shall deduct one-twelfth (1/12) of such dues from the regular salary check of the unit member each month for twelve (12) months. Deductions for unit members who sign such authorization after the commencement of the school year shall be appropriately prorated to complete the payments by the end of the school year.
- 8.2 Any unit member who is not a member of the OTA/CTA/NEA and who does not make application for membership within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Agreement, or within thirty (30) days from the commencement of assigned duties within the bargaining unit, shall become a member of the Association or pay to the Association a fee in an amount equal to unified membership dues, initiation fees and general assessments. These dues are payable to the Association in one lump sum cash payment in the same manner as required for the payment of membership dues, provided, however, that the unit members may authorize payroll deductions for such fees in the same manner as provided in section 8.1 of this Article. In the event that a unit member shall not pay such fee directly to the Association, or authorize payment through payroll deduction as provided in section 8.1, the Association shall so inform the District and the District shall immediately begin automatic payroll deduction as provided in Education Code section 45061 and in the same manner as set forth in section 8.1 of this Article. There shall be no charge to the Association for such mandatory agency fee deductions.
- 8.3 Any unit member desiring to be exempt from joining the Association or paying the representative fee because of religious beliefs or reasons of conscience shall file a claim of exemption with the Association within fifteen (15) days following the commencement of the member's working assignment. Such unit member shall pay, in lieu of a representative fee, the sum equal to the representative fee to one of the following non-religious, non-labor organizations, charitable funds exempt from taxation under section 501(c)(3) of Title 26 of the Internal Revenue Code:
  - 8.3.1 Foundation to Assist California Teachers (FACT)
  - 8.3.2 OTA Scholarship Fund
  - 8.3.3 Any other charitable organization exempt from taxation under section 501(c)(3) of Title 26 of the Internal Revenue Code mutually agreed upon between the District and the Association.

- 8.4 Proof of payment and a written statement of objection, pursuant to section 8.3 above, shall be made on an annual basis to the Association as a condition of continued exemption from the provisions of sections 8.1 and 8.2 above. Proof of payment shall be in the form of receipts and/or canceled checks indicating the amount paid, date of payment and to whom payment in lieu of the service fee has been made. Such proof shall be presented on or before October 31 of each school year. The employee, however, can sign a payroll deduction form in the same manner as for membership dues deduction.
- 8.5 Any unit member making payments as set forth in Sections 8.3 and 8.4 above and who requests that the grievance or arbitration provisions of this Agreement be used in his or her behalf shall be responsible for paying the reasonable cost of using said grievance or arbitration procedure.
- 8.6 With respect to all sums deducted by the District pursuant to sections 8.1 and 8.2 above, whether for membership dues or agency fee, the District agrees to promptly remit such monies to the Association accompanied by an alphabetical list of unit members for whom such deductions have been made, categorizing them as to membership or non-membership in the Association and indicating any changes in personnel from the list previously furnished.
- 8.7 The Association agrees to furnish any information needed by the District to fulfill the provisions of section 8.3 of this Article.
- 8.8 Upon appropriate written authorization from the employee, the District shall deduct from the salary of any employee and make appropriate remittance for annuities, insurance programs, credit union, savings bond, charitable deductions or any other plans or programs jointly approved by the Association and the District.
- 8.9 The Association agrees to pay to the District all reasonable legal fees and legal costs incurred in defending against any court action and/or administrative action challenging the legality or constitutionality of the agency fee provisions of this Agreement or their implementation. The Association shall have the exclusive right to decide and determine whether any such action or proceeding referred to above shall or shall not be compromised, resisted, defended, tried, or appealed.

#### **ARTICLE 9: GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE**

# 9.1 Definitions

- 9.1.1 A "grievance" is a claim by a teacher or group of teachers or the Association that this contract has been violated, misinterpreted or applied in a discriminatory manner, thus personally and adversely affecting the teacher.
- 9.1.2 A "grievant" is any person or entity as identified in section 9.1.1 above who is adversely affected by an action or omission which is the basis for the grievance and who files a grievance in accordance with these regulations.
- 9.1.3 A "party of interest" is any person or persons making the claim or the person who might be required to take action or against whom the action might be taken in order to resolve the claim.
- 9.1.4 Working Days means days the District Office is open for business.

# 9.2 Purpose

- 9.2.1 The purpose of this procedure is to secure, at the lowest possible administrative level, equitable solutions to the problems which may from time to time arise concerning the interpretation or application of this Agreement.
- 9.2.2 Since it is important that grievances be processed as rapidly as possible, the time limits specified at each level should be considered to be maximum and the parties are expected to expedite the process.
- 9.2.3 In the event a grievance is filed at such time that it cannot be processed through all the steps in this grievance procedure by the end of the school year and, if left unresolved until the beginning of the following school year, could result in irreparable harm to an aggrieved person, the limits set forth herein will be reduced so that the procedure may be exhausted prior to the end of the school year.

# 9.3 Procedure

## 9.3.1 Level One

9.3.1.1 Any potential grievant with a problem or complaint shall first present it to the immediate supervisor, who will endeavor to settle the matter informally.

# 9.3.2 Level Two

- 9.3.2.1 If the matter is not resolved informally, the grievant may submit a grievance in writing within thirty (30) working days after the grievant knew or should have known of the problem which is the basis of his/her complaint or problem to the Superintendent who may delegate to a Designee.
- 9.3.2.2 Said grievance, to be considered, must be signed by the grievant and clearly specify: (a) the specific provision(s) of the District policy alleged to have been violated; (b) how said provision(s) has been violated; (c) the date(s) on which said violation(s) allegedly occurred; (d) the specific relief sought by the grievant; and (e) the reasons why the decision at the informal level was unsatisfactory. Copies of the grievance shall be sent by the grievant to the Association.
- 9.3.2.3 After receiving the written grievance, the Superintendent or his/her designee shall review the informal decision together with the written submission of the grievance. Within ten (10) days after receipt of the written grievance, the Superintendent shall issue a written decision on the grievance.

# 9.3.3 Level Three

- 9.3.3.1 Within ten (10) working days after receipt of the Superintendent's written decision, the grievant may submit the grievance to mediation with a mediator designated by the State Mediation and Conciliation Service.
- 9.3.3.2 If the grievance is not resolved at this level, neither party may refer to any settlement proposal offered during mediation at any subsequent level of this grievance procedure.

## 9.3.4 Level Four

- 9.3.4.1 Within ten (10) days of the completion of mediation, the decision of the Superintendent may be further appealed to binding arbitration.
- 9.3.4.2 The parties shall attempt to mutually select an arbitrator. If no agreement can be reached, the parties will request that the California State Mediation and Conciliation Service provide a list of

- seven (7) names of potential arbitrators with labor arbitration experience in the public school setting. Each party will alternately strike from the list until one (1) name exists. The order of striking shall be determined by lot.
- 9.3.4.3 It shall be the function of the arbitrator to make a final and binding award to resolve the grievance.
- 9.3.4.4 The arbitrator shall be subject to the following limitations:
  - 9.3.4.4.1 The arbitrator shall have no power to add to, subtract from, disregard, alter, or modify any of the terms of this agreement. The arbitrator shall also be limited to fashioning remedies only within the terms of this agreement.
  - 9.3.4.4.2 The arbitrator shall have no power to establish salary structures or salary schedules.
  - 9.3.4.4.3 The arbitrator shall have no power to validate or invalidate the content of classroom observation documentation or performance evaluation(s).
  - 9.3.4.4.4 The arbitrator shall have no power to establish or recommend any financial award except for back pay. General and punitive damages shall not be awarded in any case.
  - 9.3.4.4.5 The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make any decision which requires the commission of any act prohibited by law or which is in violation of the terms of this agreement.
- 9.3.4.5 The parties will work cooperatively to schedule arbitration hearing dates and times.
- 9.3.4.6 The District and the Association shall share equally expenses incurred by the arbitrator and court reporter. At all times, all other expenses (such as legal fees and witness fees) shall be borne by the party incurring them, and neither party shall be responsible for the expenses of witnesses called by the other.
- 9.3.4.7 No probationary employee may use the grievance procedure in any way to appeal a discharge or decision by the District not to renew his/her contract.

# 9.4 Special Procedures

- 9.4.1 Any grievance based upon a complaint that the employee has been placed in the wrong salary schedule or step, or that he/she has been improperly denied an increment, or that his/her salary has been miscalculated, shall be filed directly with the appropriate administrator under the Superintendent of Schools, or if no such administrator exists, with the Superintendent. The appropriate administrative officer shall thereupon schedule a meeting to consider the grievance within twenty (20) days and shall render a decision in writing within five (5) days after such meeting.
- 9.4.2 The decision of any business or administrative personnel to whom a grievance is presented pursuant to this section, may be appealed to the Superintendent in writing pursuant to the procedures set forth in Level Three above.
- 9.4.3 The Association will have the right to initiate or appeal grievances growing out of an alleged violation of Association rights contained in this agreement. Any such grievances shall be initiated by filing the written grievance in the first instance with the appropriate administrator having jurisdiction of the subject matter of the unit member or members affected. A meeting on such a grievance shall be held within twenty (20) days of its filing. In the event such grievance is originally filed with an administrator other than a site administrator, an informational copy of such grievance shall be sent simultaneously to the administrator or administrators of the employees involved. Any appeal from the decision of such administrators shall be made directly to the Superintendent pursuant to the provisions set forth in Level Three above.
- 9.4.4 Appeals to the Superintendent, or grievances filed originally with him/her under this section, shall be reviewed by the Superintendent within twenty (20) days of the receipt, by him, of the appeal or grievance. Written notice of time date and place of said meeting shall be given five (5) days prior thereto to the President of the Association and any administrator involved in the grievance. The Superintendent shall render a decision in writing within ten (10) days after concluding such meeting.

# 9.5 General Provisions

- 9.5.1 The filing or pendency of any grievance shall in no way operate to impede, delay or interfere with the right of the Board to take the action complained of.
- 9.5.2 Nothing contained in this article or elsewhere in this agreement shall be construed to prevent any individual employee from presenting and processing a grievance and having it adjusted without intervention by the Association if the

- adjustment is not inconsistent with the terms of this agreement.
- 9.5.3 Failure at any step of this procedure to appeal a grievance to the next step within the specified time limits shall preclude any further appeal on the grievance. The time limits specified in any steps of this procedure may be changed in any specific instance only by mutual agreement, signed by the Superintendent and the President of the Association.
- 9.5.4 All documents, communications and records dealing with the processing of a grievance will be filed separately from the personnel files of the participants
- 9.5.5 Forms for processing grievances are attached.
- 9.5.6 In the course of investigation of any filed grievance, representatives of the Association will report to the principal of the building being visited and will state the purpose of the visit immediately upon arrival.
- 9.5.7 In processing grievances the parties will avoid interruption of the classroom activities and District operations and any unnecessary involvement of students.
- 9.5.8 If any member of the Association is a party in interest to any grievance, he/she shall not serve as the Association's grievance representative in the processing of such grievances.
- 9.5.9 It will be practice of all parties in interest to process grievances after the regular workday or at other times which to not interfere with assigned duties.

# ARTICLE 10: TRANSFER PROCEDURE FOR CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL

# 10.1 Definitions

- 10.1.1 Transfer shall mean change in school site.
- 10.1.2 Reassignment shall refer to any change in assignment at the same school site (including grade level (elementary), department (7-12). If a teacher on 6 of 6 assignment reverts to a regular schedule, it is not considered a reassignment.
- 10.1.3 Voluntary transfer or reassignment shall mean teacher-initiated.
- 10.1.4 Involuntary transfer or reassignment shall mean administration initiated.
- 10.1.5 Applicant any unit member who submits a District transfer application form.
- 10.1.6 Vacancy is any position that does not have a unit member assigned to it. This includes, but is not limited to, openings due to resignation, retirement, death, promotion, or newly created and/or additional positions.
- 10.1.7 Seniority District seniority is the first day the employee worked in continuous service in the previous Oakdale Joint Union High School District and/or the previous Oakdale Union Elementary School District. Employees with the same initial date of service shall have their seniority number determined in accord with appropriate Education Code provisions. Employees hired after July 1, 1998 shall have their seniority determined by the first day of paid service or as otherwise provided by statute.
- 10.1.8 Teaching Days means days pupils are present for instruction at a site.

# 10.2 Criteria for Transfer or Reassignment

- 10.2.1 Proper credential
- 10.2.2 Educational background and experience appropriate to position. (ie. K-6, 7-8, 9-12. Special Education teachers are considered to be different positions until they have completed five (5) years of service with a fully authorized credential in the district. After that time they will have full transfer rights.)
- 10.2.3 Major or minor field.

- 10.2.4 Proven competency in the new teaching area.
- 10.2.5 Length of service within the District.
- 10.2.6 Proven effectiveness in present position, including consideration of the most recent evaluation.
- 10.2.7 Teacher preference.

# 10.3 Voluntary Transfer or Reassignment

- 10.3.1 Principals will email staff asking for any requests for reassignment for the next school year to be submitted by the Friday after the 1<sup>st</sup> March Board Meeting. After the reassignments at the site are completed, the positions will be opened for all teachers in the District.
- 10.3.2 During and after the school year, all staff will be notified of vacancies by email.
- 10.3.3 This vacancy shall be filled by the most qualified site staff member (using the criteria in 10.2).
- 10.3.4 Qualified teachers within the District shall be given preference for any, K-6 contained classroom of 7-12 single subject, teaching vacancies remaining at a site for which they are credentialed and qualified (using the criteria in 10.2).
- 10.3.5 Selection shall be made on the basis of qualifications stated under Criteria in Section 10.2.
- 10.3.6 Any vacancies occurring after the start of the school year will be filled with a certificated employee for the current year and re-opened as a regular vacancy the following year.
- 10.3.7 Consultation with the department chairperson in grades 7 12, the principals of each affected school, and with the applicant shall precede any transfer or reassignment.
- 10.3.8 Within ten (10) days of the decision to hire, all applicants shall be notified in writing.
- 10.3.9 Applicants shall have the right to confer with the decision makers and discuss reasons for denial of the request and shall be given written reasons for the denial upon request.

- 10.3.10 The teacher, department chairpersons, and principals involved will be the first to know of any decision. Final decisions will be issued from the District Office.
- 10.3.11 Request of applications, in writing, for reassignment or transfer shall be active until March 1 of each year. To reactivate a request, a written application must be re-submitted and filed after March 1 of each year.
- 10.3.12 Non-classroom assignments, teacher-in-charge, subject specialist, GATE, etc, shall not be opened for transfers.
- 10.3.13 Counseling positions may be transferred into by existing counselor, but unit members who are not currently in a counseling position may not transfer into an open counseling position.

# **10.4** Involuntary Transfer or Reassignment

- 10.4.1 Teachers shall not be involuntarily transferred or reassigned arbitrarily, capriciously, or without rational basis in fact.
- 10.4.2 Teachers shall not be involuntarily transferred or reassigned to positions for which they are not qualified by training or experience.
- 10.4.3 All notifications of an involuntary transfer or reassignment shall be made at a meeting with a superintendent/designee, principals, department chairpersons involved, and the teacher involved. At this meeting the teacher involved will be furnished a written statement of the reasons for the transfer or reassignment and have an opportunity to discuss the proposed change.
- 10.4.4 If the transfer or reassignment proposed is acceptable to all parties at this meeting, the arrangement will be considered complete.
- 10.4.5 No reassignments or transfers shall be made after MAY 15, for the following year, with the exception of those made necessary by program or enrollment changes or loss of certificated personnel after that date.
- 10.4.6 All teachers who have been involuntarily transferred or reassigned because of program or enrollment or loss of certificated personnel may, upon written request, return to their previous assignments/school site within two school years if vacancies occur.
- 10.4.7 During the school year, a teacher who has been involuntarily transferred or reassigned shall have for preparation two (2) teaching days, at full pay, before

- assuming the new assignment.
- 10.4.8 No teacher shall suffer any financial loss due to any involuntary transfer or reassignment.
- 10.4.9 Teachers normally would not be involuntarily transferred/reassigned the last year following their formal notification to the District of their intention to retire within the same school year.
- 10.5 Teachers on special assignment who are returning to a regular teaching assignment shall have the same rights for transfer as outlined in Article 10.3.3. They will be considered as "site staff members."

#### **ARTICLE 11: EVALUATION PROCEDURES**

- 11.1 Probationary employees shall be evaluated at least once each year during probationary service.
- 11.2 A formal Stull Evaluation of each teacher, in permanent status, shall be made in writing once every two (2) years, unless the teacher received a less than satisfactory Stull Evaluation on his/her previous evaluation.
  - 11.2.1 Beginning in the 2022/23 school year. Unit members with a minimum of six (6) completed evaluations on file who have had an evaluation in either District teaching year ten (10) or eleven (11) shall have a Stull Evaluation every four (4) years rather than every two (2) years, unless the evaluator determines that there exists cause for the unit member to remain on the existing evaluation schedule.
- 11.3 The District shall normally schedule a meeting on or before October 15<sup>th</sup> with each teacher to be evaluated, but no later than November 1<sup>st</sup>. At this meeting, the identified evaluator will furnish a copy of the evaluation procedures. The evaluator and evaluatee will seek to agree on: (1) the goals and objectives to be achieved during the evaluation period; (2) the progress of students toward the established standards; (3) the teacher's non-instructional duties and responsibilities; (4) the suitable learning environment within the scope of the teacher's responsibilities; and (5) classroom management/instructional techniques and strategies used. If a teacher and his/her evaluator cannot agree on one or more of these matters, the disagreement shall be noted on the District evaluation form prior to the actual evaluation assessment.

#### 11.4 Observation Procedures

- 11.4.1 For each permanent teacher, the evaluation procedures shall include one scheduled observation of no less than thirty (30) minutes. If a teacher receives a less than satisfactory observation in any area, more formal observations may be scheduled to review and assist remediation in the deficient area(s).
- 11.4.2 Evaluation procedures for teachers not in permanent status shall include at least two observations of no less than thirty (30) minutes. The first observation shall be held within the first sixty (60) calendar days of the teacher's instructional year.
- 11.4.3 Observation reports will be provided in writing within five (5) working days of the observation.

- 11.4.4 Following classroom observations, and after the observation write-up is provided to the teacher, the administrator's conference with the teacher will be scheduled and held within two working days.
- 11.5 The final Stull evaluation shall be completed no later than (30) calendar days before the end of the teacher's instructional year. Evaluation shall be in writing and a copy of the evaluation report shall be furnished the evaluatee. The teacher shall be given the opportunity to append a written statement of his/her views to the evaluation report and such statements shall be included in the teacher's personnel file.
- 11.6 The teacher shall have the right to identify any constraints which the teacher believes may inhibit his/her ability to meet the objectives and standards established.
- 11.7 A teacher who received a less than satisfactory observation(s) shall, upon request, be entitled to an additional classroom observation and conference by a mutually agreed upon District evaluator.
- 11.8 In the case of an observation that is less than satisfactory, the evaluator shall provide for direct assistance to the teacher in correcting cited deficiencies. The teacher has the responsibility of implementing the general assistance recommended to help remediate identified performance problems. The evaluator's role shall include, but not be limited to, the following:
  - 11.8.1 Specific written recommendations for improvement;
  - 11.8.2 Direct assistance, which could include, but not be limited to, release-time, some form of financial assistance, and other resources designed to assist the teacher in remediating identified deficiencies;
  - 11.8.3 A general time schedule shall be developed to monitor progress;
  - 11.8.4 The District assistance program shall continue until such time as the teacher has corrected the problem areas or the District takes other action.
- 11.9 In preparing the final Stull Evaluation form, the evaluator shall rely primarily upon data collected through observations and conferences.
- 11.10 Permanent teachers generally shall not be required to submit more detailed lesson plans than other permanent teachers at a school site, unless the teacher has received a less than satisfactory observation or evaluation and the requirement is part of the assistance to remediate an identified problem.
- 11.11 A teacher may be evaluated and held accountable for any aspects of the educational

program over which he/she has the authority and facilities to correct deficiencies.

- 11.11.1 Final evaluations shall not contain a "needs to improve to meet district expectations" mark in any area in which the employee had not been previously made aware during the evaluation process.
- 11.12 Teachers shall not evaluate and/or observe other teachers as part of the evaluation process.
- 11.13 The evaluation and assessment of teacher competence shall not include areas identified by the Education Code as being excluded from the Stull evaluation process.
- 11.14 The District and the Association shall mutually develop evaluation forms for teachers and counselors and append them to this Agreement. (Attachment 2- Teacher, Attachment 3 Counselor)
  - 11.14.1 These documents shall be the only evaluation forms which may be placed into an employee's personnel file.

#### **ARTICLE 12: PERSONNEL FILES**

- 12.1 All material placed in a unit member's personnel file shall be dated and identified by the person who prepared the material, subject to the following procedure:
  - 12.1.1 A copy of any negative materials, or any letter of reprimand, which may affect employment will be provided to the unit member before it is placed in his/her personnel file. Receipt will be verified by unit members' signature.
  - 12.1.2 If the unit member alleges that the material is false, he/she shall have a reasonable time, as stated by the District but no less than ten (10) days, to produce evidence that is false. The unit member shall be allowed to present the evidence to the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources who shall direct that the material not be placed in the unit member's personnel file if the Assistant Superintendent is convinced that the information in the document is not truthful.
  - 12.1.3 A unit member will be able to respond in writing if the material is placed in the personnel file.
  - 12.1.4 Information of a derogatory nature shall not be entered or filed unless and until the unit member is given notice and opportunity to review and comment thereon. A unit member shall have the right to enter, and have attached to any such derogatory statement, her/his own comments thereon. Such review, and any preparation of comments in response to the material and/or statement, shall take place during normal business hours, and the unit member shall be released from duty for this purpose without salary reduction.
  - 12.1.5 There shall be a single personnel file for each unit member. Personnel files shall be kept in the District Office. Materials contained in a site file maintained by an administrator shall not be used in decisions affecting the assignment, discipline or employment status of a unit member unless that information has been entered in the official personnel file in a timely manner and as provided in this Article.

#### **ARTICLE 13: PUBLIC CHARGES**

- 13.1 Procedures for processing complaints against teachers received by the District shall be as follows:
  - 13.1.1 The complainant must first address the teacher in an effort to solve the dispute. If an administrator receives a complaint about a teacher, the administrator must first refer the complainant to the teacher in an effort to informally resolve the issue. Issues will not be addressed outside the presence of the teacher before this step is taken. The teacher or parent may request the presence of an Administrator at this meeting.
  - 13.1.2 Should the involved teacher or the administrator believe the allegations in the complaint warrant a meeting, the immediate supervisor or teacher shall attempt to schedule a meeting with the complainant. At the request of the unit member, an Association representative(s) may be present at the meeting.
  - 13.1.3 If a meeting is held and the matter is not resolved at said meeting to the satisfaction of the complainant, or if the complainant is, with good cause, unable or unwilling to attend the meeting, his/her complaint will be put in writing and submitted to the District with a copy to the teacher.
- 13.2 Anonymous complaints, complaints which are withdrawn or complaints not in writing shall not be placed in the teacher's personnel file, or utilized in any evaluation, assignment or disciplinary action against the unit member.
- 13.3 Notwithstanding any other provision herein, this article shall not apply in cases involving complaints against unit members in which the subject matter is addressed under State or Federal law including, but not limited to, complaints involving child abuse, sexual harassment, discrimination, civil rights, and other statutory violations.

# **ARTICLE 14: NON-DISCRIMINATION/ACADEMIC FREEDOM**

- 14.1 Teacher application forms and oral interview procedures shall not refer to membership in, or preference for, employee organizations.
- 14.2 It is the policy of the District that all instruction shall be fair, accurate, objective, and appropriate to the age and maturity of the pupils, and sensitive to the community needs and the needs and values of our diverse cultures and heritages. Academic freedom is essential to the fulfillment of this policy and the District acknowledges the fundamental need to protect unit members from any censorship or restraint which might interfere with the unit member's obligation to pursue truth in the performance of their teaching functions.
- 14.3 The teacher's right to assign grades shall be consistent with or pursuant to Education Code section 49066.

#### **ARTICLE 15: SAFETY CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT**

- 15.1 Any employee who observes an unsafe working condition or potentially violent incident, shall immediately report, in writing, to his/her site administrator, such conditions(s) including the grounds for believing or alleging it unsafe or potentially violent. If this involves an extreme emergency or imminent danger, it may be reported orally and followed by a written report.
- 15.2 The site administrator will take immediate steps to determine the nature and extent of the alleged unsafe working conditions after the written report is received. If deemed to be an extreme emergency or imminent danger, the site administrators shall make an IMMEDIATE inspection to determine appropriate action. If not deemed to be an immediate emergency or imminent danger, an inspection shall take place no later than one working (24 hours) day.
- 15.3 The site administrator shall communicate in writing his/her decision back to the employee. This decision shall include the following:
  - 15.3.1 Whether an extreme emergency or imminent danger exists;
  - 15.3.2 Whether an unsafe working condition exists;
  - 15.3.3 What action will be taken to correct any unsafe working condition;
  - 15.3.4 The approximate timeline for correcting this situation; or
  - 15.3.5 What provisions are stipulated, if any, by the building administrator to require the employee to continue the performance of his/her assigned duties.
- 15.4 If the employee disagrees with section 15.3.1 or 15.3.5 above, he/she shall immediately transmit, in writing, a disagreement statement to his or her site administrator and request a timely inspection by a third party maintaining knowledge in this area.
- 15.5 Upon receipt of this request, the site administrator shall immediately contact the appropriate third party and request an inspection and the third party shall determine a) if an extreme danger does exist, or b) the appropriate action needed to insure the safety of the employee.
- 15.6 If the employee disagrees with sections 15.3.2, 15.3.3, or 15.3.4 above, the Grievance procedure may be used. The filing or pendency of any grievance alleging an unsafe condition of employment shall not be construed as justification for refusal to perform assigned duties.

- 15.7 Each teacher in his/her respective school shall be furnished a written description of the rights and duties with respect to handling student discipline problems. This plan shall include, but not be limited to, written disciplinary procedures, teachers' rights and duties, and referral mechanisms.
- 15.8 Upon written request, the District will consider replacement or repair, at District discretion, of the damaged or destroyed clothing or other personal property worn by a teacher while performing services for the District.
- 15.9 All teachers will report any suspicious objects. No teacher shall be required to search for a bomb or put him or herself in any immediate danger in any situation. Class time will be made up at the discretion of the District.
- 15.10 If requested by the District, the District will assume responsibility for a teacher's instruments or audio-visual equipment if used pursuant to a District authorization form signed by a principal.
- 15.11 Employees shall immediately report in writing to their immediate supervisor cases of assault or threatened assault suffered by them in connection with their employment.
- 15.12 The District shall provide each classroom and major work area with an appropriate first aid kit.

# **ARTICLE 16: CLASSROOM AIDES AND STUDENT TEACHERS**

- 16.1 Unit members may request to be included on an interview team for prospective classroom aides.
- 16.2 The District will confer with unit members on the assignment of student teachers from teacher training institutions.
- 16.3 No student teacher will be assigned to a class without the consent of the administrator and the master teacher.

# **ARTICLE 17: ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE**

- 17.1 Unit members employed on a full-time basis shall be entitled to accumulate ten (10) days per school year of illness/injury leave available to the unit member from the first work day of each year. Illness/injury leave, which is not used, shall accumulate from year to year without limit. Any used but unearned sick leave shall be deducted from final pay warrant upon termination.
- 17.2 Unit members who work less than full-time shall be entitled to accumulate and use illness/injury leave for all such service at a rate that is in the same proportion as their part-time employment bears to full-time employment.
- 17.3 In addition to all illness/injury leave entitlement that a unit member may accumulate within the District, he/she shall also be entitled to all unused illness/injury leave which may have been accumulated while employed in a position requiring certification qualifications in another California school district according to the Education Codes.
- 17.4 The District shall annually provide each teacher with a written statement of his/her accrued sick leave no later than October 15 of each year.
- 17.5 Unit members may use accumulated illness/injury leave and extended illness leave as set forth in this Article for disabilities caused or contributed to by pregnancy, miscarriage or childbirth and recovery there from. The length of such disability leave, including the date on which the leave is to begin and the date on which the duties are to be resumed, shall be determined by the unit member and her physician or a licensed medical practitioner.
- 17.6 Certificated employees on extended regular contracts will be granted sick leave in addition to regular sick leave, at the rate of one (1) day per month or partial month(s), as long as the increment is at least one-half (1/2) of the school days. This provision does not apply to extra-curricular assignments and/or summer school.
- 17.7 Personnel teaching Adult Evening High School in addition to their full-time position within the District shall be allowed to use one-half (1/2) day per semester of their accumulated District injury/illness leave for every semester three hour class taught. Each absence from the Adult School assignment shall be charged at the rate of one-half of a full day of sick leave.
- 17.8 No salary or sick leave deduction is made for absence due to a verifiable contagious disease contacted during the performance of school duties with other persons having a contagious disease, for the period of isolation or quarantine. Written verification from an attending physician or a certificate from the County Health Department is required.

- 17.9 Long Term Differential Illness Leave
  - 17.9.1 A long-term illness leave may be granted a teacher upon written verification from the personal physician that illness or accident will keep the teacher from duty for an extended period of time.
  - 17.9.2 The teacher shall receive regular salary until the expiration of his/her accumulated sick leave which shall be used prior to the availability of the five month differential period in Paragraph 17.9.3 below.
  - 17.9.3 The five (5) month period shall begin upon exhaustion of the teacher's accumulated sick leave. The teacher shall receive the difference between his/her salary and the approved per diem pay of a substitute teacher.
  - 17.9.4 For any portion of the five months remaining after expiration of accumulated sick leave, the teacher shall receive the difference between his/her salary and the per diem rate of a substitute teacher, but no less than fifty percent (50%) of the teacher's regular salary.
  - 17.9.5 Unused portion of the five month differential pay may not be carried-over to the succeeding school year, except as provided by statute.
  - 17.9.6 The District may require a physical examination by a medical practitioner, at the District's expense, to confirm fitness to resume duties before a teacher is eligible to return to work.

#### **ARTICLE 18: BEREAVEMENT LEAVE**

- 18.1 A certificated employee will be granted three (3) days leave on account of the death of a member of the immediate family. The "immediate family" means mother, father, mother-in-law, father-in-law, step-parents, step-children, significant other, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, child, grandmother, grandfather, grandchild, of the employee or of the spouse of the employee, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother, sister, aunt, uncle, legal guardians and foster children of the certificated employee, or anyone living in the immediate household of the certificated employee.
  - 18.1.1 A certificated employee may be eligible for five (5) days if they must travel out of state, or more than 300 miles one way.
  - 18.1.2 A certificated employee who utilizes Bereavement Leave on account of the death of a spouse, domestic partner, child (including foster child), or parent may utilize the entire five (5) days.
  - 18.1.3 Bereavement Leave is provided by the District at no leave deduction to the employee.
- 18.2 Absence for a day or less to attend the funeral of a fellow teacher, student, or former employee of the District may be granted upon special request of the site administrator. Such absence shall be without loss of pay.
- 18.3 See Article 24: Personal Necessity Leave, Section 24.2.1 regarding death or serious illness of a relative other than the immediate family.

# **ARTICLE 19: JURY LEAVE**

- 19.1 A teacher may be absent from duty to serve as a regularly called juror, not including Civil Grand Jury, or if subpoenaed as a court witness, other than as litigant, without loss of pay or deduction of sick leave provided that any fees paid by the court shall be endorsed to the District; but the District will reimburse the teacher for expenses included in the check.
- 19.2 Request for jury duty leave shall be submitted promptly to the site administrator accompanied by a copy of the official notice of jury duty.
- 19.3 Teachers shall submit written verification of attendance for each day of leave under this Article.

# **ARTICLE 20: PERSONAL LEAVE**

- 20.1 Personal Leave Without Pay
  - 20.1.1 A unit member may apply for and shall be granted an unpaid health leave of absence for the remainder of the current school year and up to one (1) additional school year. The unit member shall furnish the District, upon request, a physician's verification of his/her need for such health leave. Such leave may be extended for an additional twelve (12) months.
  - 20.1.2 The District may grant a unit member, upon request, an unpaid leave of absence for up to one (1) school year to pursue personal endeavors such as, but not limited to, study, exchange teaching, Peace Corps, Vista, or other personal interests.

#### ARTICLE 21: INDUSTRIAL ACCIDENT AND ILLNESS LEAVE

- 21.1 The accident or illness must have arisen out of and in the course of the employment of the teacher and must be accepted as a bona fide injury or illness arising out of and in the course of employment by either the State Compensation Insurance Fund or another carrier.
- 21.2 The teacher shall notify the District as soon as possible, when an injury or illness arising out of and in the course of employment occurs.
- 21.3 Allowable leave for each accident or illness shall be for a period of sixty (60) days during which the schools of the District are required to be in session or when the teacher would otherwise have been performing work for the District in any one fiscal year.
- 21.4 Should the leave overlap into the next fiscal year, the employee shall be entitled to only the amount of unused leave due him/her for the same illness or injury. Allowable leave shall not be accumulated from year to year.
- 21.5 The leave shall be reduced by one day for each day of authorized absence regardless of temporary disability indemnity award.
- 21.6 During any paid leave of absence, the employee shall be paid such a portion of salary due him/her for any month in which the absence occurs, which when added to his/her temporary disability indemnity will result in a payment not to exceed his/her full salary.
- 21.7 The benefits provided in this Article are in addition to the regular sick leave benefits. Accordingly, the District shall not deduct accumulated sick leave from the sick leave allotment of an employee who has qualified for and is absent as the result of an industrial accident or illness.

#### **ARTICLE 22: FAMILY CARE LEAVE**

The District follows the U.S. Department of Labor FMLA laws. The following is an abridged version from their published guidelines.

- 22.1 Employees who have completed one year of service, which includes at least 1250 hours of service for the District during the previous one year period (District full-time employees working a complete school year have satisfied the minimum hourly requirement) have the right to request unpaid leave of absence for up to 12 workweeks within a 12-month period for the purpose of caring for a new baby, a newly adopted baby, or a newly placed foster child or for a child, spouse, or parent with a serious health condition, or medical leave for the employee's own serious health condition.
- 22.2 There is no carry-over of unused leave from one 12 month period to the next 12-month period.
- 22.3 "Parent" means a biological, foster or adoptive parent, a stepparent, a legal guardian, or other person who stood in loco parentis to the employee when the employee was a child. "Child" means a biological, adopted or foster child, a stepchild, a legal ward, or a child of a person standing in loco parentis who is either under 18 years of age or an adult dependent child who is incapable of self-care because of a mental or physical disability.
- 22.4 "Serious health condition" means an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition of the employee or a child, parent or spouse of the employee which involves either:
  - 22.4.1 Inpatient care in a hospital, hospice or residential health care facility or,
  - 22.4.2 Continuing treatment or continuing supervision by a health care provider.
- 22.5 "Spouse" means a partner in marriage or domestic partnership as defined by California Family Code or Law.
- 22.6 If both parents of a child who are entitled to family care leave under section 22.1 of this Article are employees of the District, the District shall not be required to grant leave in connection with the birth, adoption, or foster care of a child that would allow the parents' family care leave to total more than the amount specified in section 22.1, above.
- 22.7 The employee shall provide reasonable advance notice to the District of the need for family care leave, the date the leave will commence, and the estimated duration of the leave. If the need for a leave becomes known more than 30 days prior to the date a leave is to begin, the employee must give at least 30 days prior written notice.

- 22.8 If leave is needed for a planned medical treatment or supervision, the employee shall make a reasonable effort to schedule the treatment or supervision to avoid disruption of District operations. This scheduling shall be subject to the health care providers' approval.
- 22.9 Verification may be required by the District to verify the serious illness of the child, spouse, or parent. The District will accept medical verification by the treating health professional. Verification shall include the following:
  - 22.9.1 The date on which the serious health condition began.
  - 22.9.2 The probable duration of the condition;
  - 22.9.3 The appropriate medical facts within the knowledge of the health care provider regarding the condition;
  - 22.9.4 If the employee is requesting leave because of his/her own serious health condition, the health care provider's certification that due to the serious health condition, the employee is unable to perform the functions of his/her job.
- 22.10 Family care is an unpaid leave of absence. During the period of family care leave, the employee shall be entitled to twelve (12) weeks of the District's contribution toward medical, dental and vision plans, or cash, as provided in Article 34 of this Agreement, as provided to regular bargaining unit members. The District may recover the premium paid for the employee during the leave if the employee fails to return from leave after the period of leave has expired for a reason other than the continuation, recurrence, or onset of a serious health condition that entitles the employee to leave, or other circumstances beyond the control of the employee.
- 22.11 Prior to using this leave, the District may require the employee to use the appropriate paid leave for the employee's own serious health condition.
- 22.12 For purposes of family care leave the 12-month period shall be on a rolling calendar year to begin with the first day of the leave up to 12 work weeks. Eligibility (1,250 hours) will be determined by counting backwards from the first day of the leave.
- 22.13 The employee shall retain his/her employee status with the District during the leave period, and the leave shall not constitute a break in service for purposes of longevity or seniority under this Agreement.
- 22.14 Upon granting an employee's request for family care leave, the District shall guarantee to reinstate the employee in the same or a comparable position when the leave ends.

## **ARTICLE 23: EMPLOYEE DIFFERENTIAL LEAVE**

- 23.1 An employee may absent himself/herself from duty for personal reasons not to exceed two (2) days in any school year. The employee shall notify his/her principal or supervisor forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the absence. No more than three (3) employees may use this leave per day per school site without District approval. (Note: A District form is provided for this request.)
- 23.2 The employee shall pay the full cost to hire a substitute. In order to receive full credit for retirement purposes a check for the cost of the substitute should be made out to the District and delivered to the Payroll Department prior to the fifth of the following month.
- 23.3 For purposes of this section nothing less than a half-day is to be used.
- 23.4 In the case of serious illness of a member of his/her immediate family, a unit member may arrange with the District an extension of differential leave within the current academic year with the option to reapply for the next year.

#### **ARTICLE 24: PERSONAL NECESSITY LEAVE**

- 24.1 The bargaining unit member, at his/her election may claim and deduct up to ten (10) days per year from his/her accumulated sick leave in case of personal necessity. Additional days from accumulated sick leave may be granted by the District on a case-by-case basis without precedence. Prior approval by the District will not be required for the following reasons:
  - 24.1.1 Death or serious illness of a member of his/her immediate family as defined in Bereavement Leave;
  - 24.1.2 Accident involving his/her person or property or the person or property of a member of his/her immediate family.
  - 24.1.3 Inability to get to the employee's assigned place of duty because of circumstances beyond his/her control and as subsequently approved by the District.
- 24.2 Prior approval is necessary before the leave is deducted from the above ten (10) days whenever possible. Absences which may be charged to the bargaining unit member's accumulated sick leave under this section include the following:
  - 24.2.1 Death or serious illness of a relative other than the immediate family or a close personal friend;
  - 24.2.2 Appearances in response to an official order from a duly authorized governmental agency, which cannot be scheduled outside of the work day;
  - 24.2.3 Illness or accident to immediate family member.
  - 24.2.4 Paternity leave or domestic partner leave during and immediately after the birth of the child.
  - 24.2.5 Professional Growth
- 24.3 If more than ten (10) days of personal necessity are used in a year or if personal necessity days exceed the employees accumulated sick leave bank, the employee will be docked their daily per diem rate of pay.
- A bargaining unit member may take up to five (5) days of the total ten (10) days of personal necessity leave with advanced notification to the site administrator which may be used as employee discretionary days. A maximum of the five (5) discretionary days may be used consecutively on contracted days. There shall be no more than three (3) bargaining unit members per day per school site who may use this leave on any given day, except with District approval. This leave shall not be used for concerted activities and is not cumulative. Bargaining unit members are expected to use professional judgment concerning the use of these days.

#### **ARTICLE 25: SABBATICAL LEAVE**

- 25.1 *Eligibility:* Any certificated employee of the District for not less than seven (7) consecutive years may apply for a leave of absence for one year, and/or one semester, and/or one trimester. Sabbatical leaves for certificated employees shall be limited to two percent (2%) of the full-time teachers in the District.
- 25.2 *Formal Study:* An applicant who applies for professional leave under this section shall agree to undertake a full-time program of study in an accredited university or institution of higher learning. Evidence of the successful completion of the formal study program shall be filed in the form of a transcript, certified by an approved institution, of work taken and grades earned.
- 25.3 *Independent Study*: An applicant for an independent study leave shall agree to pursue a program of study, research, and/or experience under the guidance of a sponsor from a recognized institution of higher learning. The program must be at least equivalent in effort and content to the required units of a formal study leave. Evidence of the successful completion or of satisfactory progress in the pursuit of the independent study program shall be in the form of a written statement from the sponsor.
- 25.4 *Travel:* An applicant for sabbatical leave under this provision shall submit brief statements of the proposed itineraries which must be so planned as to demonstrate specific ways in which the trip will contribute to the improvement of the applicant's services with respect to the particular educational field in which he/she is engaged. A report shall be submitted to the Superintendent upon completion of the trip attesting to the satisfactory fulfillment of this requirement.
- 25.5 *Procedures:* An applicant for sabbatical leave shall file a request with the Superintendent no later than 60 days prior to the trimester/semester in which the sabbatical leave is requested. After all applications are received they will be evaluated within thirty (30) days. In the event more applicants apply than those allowed, seniority in the District will be a considering factor. The application must be accompanied by a physician's certificate of health, indicating that the applicant is in satisfactory physical condition to undertake the study or travel proposed. The application is subject to approval by the Governing Board.
- 25.6 *General Regulations:* Sabbatical leaves of absence shall not be granted for less than the full trimester/semester.
- 25.7 Accident or Illness: Interruption of the program of study or travel caused by serious accident or illness during a sabbatical leave shall not affect the amount of

- compensation to be paid the employee under the terms of the agreement for sabbatical leave. If possible, the Superintendent must be notified by registered mail within ten (10) days after the accident or illness and a doctor's statement verifying the accident or illness must be submitted.
- 25.8 *Compensation:* The salary paid the teacher on sabbatical leave shall be his/her salary minus the substitute's salary or 50% of his/her salary whichever is greater. The teacher shall have the right to continue to receive all health and welfare benefits at District expense during the sabbatical leave. Salary shall be paid on a monthly basis during the sabbatical.
- 25.9 A good faith effort will be made to return the teacher to the position held at the time of granting of the sabbatical leave, subject to District transfer and assignment policies.
- 25.10 A teacher returning from sabbatical leave will be placed on the salary schedule as if the teacher had remained in active service.
- 25.11 The number of teachers, if any, on sabbatical leave shall be determined by the District. Factors to be considered shall be:
  - 25.11.1 Value of the sabbatical leave to the District;
  - 25.11.2 Budgetary considerations;
  - 25.11.3 Seniority;
- 25.12 A teacher who has taken leave under this Article shall render service equal in length to double the length of the sabbatical after completion of the sabbatical. If a teacher fails to return, following a Sabbatical Leave, he or she shall reimburse the District for the compensation and benefits provided to the employee during the Sabbatical Leave.

# **ARTICLE 26: HEALTH LEAVE**

- 26.1 Upon a doctor's recommendation, a teacher may be granted a leave of absence without pay for reasons of health. Such leave shall be by mutual agreement between the District and the teacher.
- 26.2 Prior to return to service, the teacher must submit a written statement from the teacher's physician certifying the teacher's ability to return to full-time service.
- 26.3 Request for health leave shall be submitted in writing to the District as soon as practicable.
- 26.4 A teacher may be eligible for medical coverage as provided in Article 22, Family Care Leave.

# ARTICLE 27: VOLUNTARY DONATION OF SICK LEAVE TO ANOTHER EMPLOYEE

- When a catastrophic illness or injury incapacitates a unit member or a member of his/her immediate family, and the unit member has exhausted all paid leaves of absence, the unit member may receive donations of sick leave credits from other unit members.
  - 27.1.1 The unit member shall provide written verification of the illness/injury from the member's physician indicating the probable duration of the illness or injury.
  - 27.1.2 Unit members may donate accrued sick leave credits to the unit member making the request.
  - 27.1.3 Donations will be turned in to an OTA site representative who will submit them to the District as needed.
  - 27.1.4 Once donations are submitted to the District, the donations are irrevocable.
  - 27.1.5 Sick leave may not be transferred by any employee who, following transfer of the sick leave, will have less than ten (10) days of accumulated sick leave remaining. This requirement will not apply if the donating employee has resigned and is relocating out of the state of California.

# **ARTICLE 28: LEGISLATIVE LEAVE**

28.1 Bargaining unit members elected in municipal, state, or federal elections to hold a public office may use up to three (3) Personal Necessity days for purposes of official business directly associated with the elected position.

# **ARTICLE 29: CHILD-REARING LEAVE**

- 29.1 The District may provide unpaid leave for a teacher who is a natural or adopting parent or domestic partner for the purpose of rearing a child. A teacher shall notify the District as soon as practical prior to the anticipated date on which the leave is to commence.
- 29.2 A teacher may use up to thirty (30) days of accrued sick leave for childcare related to or immediately following adoption of an child.
- 29.3 Teachers would be entitled to additional family care leave as provided in this Agreement, Article 22.

#### **ARTICLE 30: LEAVES**

# 30.1 General Leave Provisions

- 30.1.1 The District may require a doctor or licensed medical practitioner verification of illness if the District has a reasonable suspicion of abuse of the leave taken. This may include questionable patterns of taking the leave(s).
- 30.1.2 No teacher shall be gainfully employed by any other school district while on leave of absence status from the District without written District approval.
- 30.1.3 Before a teacher is eligible to return to work from a leave of absence occasioned by disability, illness or injury, the District may require a physical examination by a physician prior to the teacher's resumption of duties.
- 30.1.4 Leaves of absence may be extended only upon written approval by the District.
- 30.1.5 Employees on unpaid leave shall have the right to pay insurance premiums subject to the following limitations:
  - 30.1.5.1 The insurance benefit is provided by this contract;
  - 30.1.5.2 The District's contract with the carrier permits employees on unpaid status to pay such premiums;
  - 30.1.5.3 The payments are made pursuant to forms and procedures established by the District.
- 30.1.6 Unless otherwise provided in this contract, an employee on paid leave of absence under the provisions of this contract shall be entitled to: 1) An employee returning from any leave of absence of a year or less or an employee returning from a Sabbatical Leave shall be placed in his/her previous assignment. An employee returning from a leave of more than a year shall be placed in his/her previous assignment if it exists and is filled with other than a permanent or probationary employee. 2) Receive credit for annual salary increments provided during his/her leave; 3) receive during his/her leave all other fringe benefits to the extent not expressly prohibited by law.
- 30.1.7 Any other leaves involving extenuating circumstances may be requested through the Superintendent's office for School Board approval. The terms and conditions of granting such leaves shall remain the sole discretion of the School Board.

- 30.1.8 An employee who fails to return to work at the expiration of an approved leave shall be deemed to be absent without justification, and shall be subject to such disciplinary action including loss of employment and all rights and privileges associated with it as the District deems appropriate within the provisions of the Education Code.
- 30.2 Any unit member who uses three (3) or less days for personal leave (any leave not for school business) during the current school year will receive a \$150.00 bonus.

# **Article 31: HOURS/WORK YEAR**

# 31.1 High School Work Day

At Oakdale High School a seven period day will be offered to students using the District approved bell schedule.

Period 0 6:30 - 7:207:40 - 8:30Period 1 Period 2 8:36 - 9:26Brunch 9:26 - 9:369:42 - 10:32Period 3 Period 4 10:38 - 11:2811:28 - 12:13Lunch Period 5 12:19 - 1:09Period 6 1:15 - 2:05Period 7 2:11 - 3:01

- 31.1.1 On three days per week, teachers are required to provide 30 minutes of office hours on a schedule established with the site administrator. During this time teachers will be in a designated location and will be available to help students. This service can be before school, lunch-time, or after school.
- 31.1.2 At Oakdale High School a seven period day will be offered to students using the District approved bell schedule. The High School teacher workday will coincide with that of the student instructional day and teacher assigned periods (1-6 or 2-7, etc.) The regular teacher work day at Oakdale High School is three hundred eighty five minutes (385) which includes a forty-five minute duty free lunch, a ten (10) minute break, and six (6) minute passing periods between classes. Hours beyond those of the students' day will be used to fulfill other professional obligations such as back-to-school night, SST, IEP and 504 meetings. Sites will continue the practice of scheduling the majority of the SST, IEP and 504 meetings during school hours, prep periods when possible.
- 31.1.3 Teachers will have five (5) periods of student instruction and have one (1) preparation period. The primary purpose of preparation periods is for staff members to prepare for all of their classes every day. A secondary purpose of preparation periods and other time on campus is to provide time for professional obligations and related activities. Teachers may be required to use their prep periods to meet for staff/curriculum development in accordance with the goals and objectives of the District. The maximum number of prep period meetings shall be two (2) a quarter. The site administrator shall give a 36 hour

- advance notice prior to prep period staff meetings except in the case of emergency situations.
- 31.1.4 Teachers will be scheduled periods one (1) through six (6) or periods two (2) through seven (7) as determined by student and department needs. Teachers scheduled one (1) through six (6) shall have their workday end no later than the regularly scheduled six (6) period day and teachers scheduled two (2) through seven (7) shall have their workday end no later than the regularly scheduled seven (7) period day.
- 31.1.5 Each year the District will identify and post the number and type of six period teaching assignments available for the subsequent year before building the master schedule based on current enrollment information. The complete list may not be known until the subsequent year begins. Teachers selected to teach six periods will receive additional compensation of 17% of their salary based on their placement on the salary scale.
- 31.1.6 Selection of teachers wishing to teach a 6<sup>th</sup> period class or a 7<sup>th</sup> period assignment shall be based upon the needs of the District in consultation with the chair of the affected department. Written documentation of the consultation shall be made available to teachers.
- 31.1.7 Teachers teaching six periods may return to a five period teaching assignment by giving written notice to the District by April 15 of the preceding year.
- 31.1.8 If by the end of the fourth week of school, the student enrollment does not warrant the number of sections allocated, the District will have the discretion to reduce six period assignments back to five. Teachers reduced to five sections will be paid for the contracted days worked plus three on the six period salary schedule.
- 31.1.9 If in the determination of the district, the student numbers at the end of the first semester do not warrant the number of sections allocated to a school, teachers teaching six periods will be reduced to five at the discretion of the district. The employee will be notified of this change by December 20 of the school year.
- 31.1.10 Counselors shall be treated as if they taught six (6) periods daily.

# **31.2 Junior High Work Day**

31.2.1 The Junior High (grades 7 and 8) teacher workday will coincide with that of the student instructional day. The annual number of minutes at Oakdale Junior

High shall be 57,500 including passing time (subject to pending legislation). Minimum days will end at 11:40 a.m., as long as the finalized number of minimum days do not require additional time. Teachers shall receive a minimum of forty-five (45) minutes of duty free lunch. Hours beyond those of the students' day will be used to fulfill other professional obligations such as back-to-school night, SST, IEP and 504 meetings. Sites will continue the practice of scheduling the majority of the SST, IEP and 504 meetings during school hours, prep periods when possible.

- 31.2.2 Junior High unit members shall have no more than five (5) periods of student contact per day. Junior High unit members shall be assigned a preparation period within the instructional day. The preparation period shall be the same length as a regular class period. If a teacher is selected to teach a 6<sup>th</sup> period based on District needs, he/she would receive additional compensation of 17% of their salary.
- 31.2.3 Teachers will have five (5) periods of student instruction and have one (1) preparation period. The primary purpose of preparation periods is for staff members to prepare for all of their classes every day. A secondary purpose of preparation periods and other time on campus is to provide time for professional obligations and related activities. Teachers may be required to use their prep periods to meet for staff/curriculum and development in accordance with the goals and objectives of the District. The maximum number of prep period meetings shall be two (2) a quarter. The site administrator shall give a 36-hour advance notice prior to prep period staff meetings except in the case of emergency situations.
- 31.2.4 Teachers will be scheduled periods one (1) through seven (7) as determined by student and department needs. Teachers scheduled one (1) through seven (7) shall have their workday end no later than the regularly schedules seven (7) period day.
- 31.2.5 Each year the District will identify and post the number and type of six period teaching assignments available for the subsequent year. The complete list may not be known until the subsequent year begins. Teachers selected to teach six periods will receive additional compensation of 17% of their salary based on their placement on the salary scale.
- 31.2.6 Selection of teachers wishing to teach a 6<sup>th</sup> period class assignment shall be based upon the needs of the District in consultation with the chair of the affected department. Written documentation of the consultation shall be made available to teachers.

- 31.2.7 Teachers teaching six periods may return to a five period teaching assignment by giving written notice to the District by April 15 of the preceding year.
- 31.2.8 If by the end of the fourth week of school, the student enrollment does not warrant the number of sections allocated, the District will have the discretion to reduce six period assignments back to five. Techers reduced to five sections will be paid for the contracted days worked plus three on the six-period salary schedule.
- 31.2.9 If in the determination of the district, the student numbers at the end of the first semester do not warrant the number of sections allocated to a school, teachers teaching six periods will be reduced to five at the discretion of the district. The employee will be notified of this change by December 20 of the school year.
- 31.2.10 Counselors shall be treated as if they taught six (6) periods daily.

# 31.3 Elementary Work Day

- 31.3.1 The work day for teachers of morning kindergarten classes and grades 1-6 will normally coincide with and begin twenty (20) minutes prior to the student instructional day. Hours beyond those of the students' day will be used to fulfill other professional obligations such as back-to-school night, open house, SST and IEP meetings. The teachers who work with the safety patrol do not have yard or bus duty.
- 31.3.2 Grades 1-3 will have forty (40) minutes of recess and ten (10) minutes of flex time to be determined by the site administrator; grades 4-6 will have twenty (20) minutes of recess.
- 31.3.3 The annual student contact minutes at each grade level at 180 days shall be based upon the following:

```
31.3.3.1.1 Kindergarten instructional day - 36,000 minutes 31.3.3.1.2 1^{st} - 3^{rd} grade instructional day - 50,400 minutes 31.3.3.1.3 4^{th} - 6^{th} grade instructional day - 54,000 minutes 31.3.3.1.4 7^{th} - 8^{th} grade instructional day - 54,000 minutes 31.3.3.1.5 9^{th} - 12^{th} grade instructional day - 64,800 minutes
```

- 31.3.3.1.5.1 For the 2010/2011 school year only, the instructional minutes will be based on 175 days as follows:
  - 31.3.3.1.5.1.1 Kindergarten 35,000 minutes

```
31.3.3.1.5.1.2 1^{st} - 3^{rd} grade -49,000 minutes 31.3.3.1.5.1.3 4^{th} - 8^{th} grade -52,500 minutes 31.3.3.1.5.1.4 9^{th} - 12^{th} grade -63,000 minutes
```

- 31.3.4 Classroom teachers in grades 1-6 shall have (90) minutes of duty free preparation time per week, which shall consist of sixty (60) minutes of computer and library time and (30) minutes of music time. During the library and computer time, students will be under the supervision of the classroom teacher while the instruction is provided by other personnel. The remaining thirty (30) minutes per week of preparation time will be provided through such an activity as music instruction, and the regular classroom teacher is not required to be present during that time. Transitional Kindergarten and Kindergarten teachers shall have a minimum of (30) thirty minutes per week during library/computer and shall remain with their students. If music time is available for all Transitional Kindergarten and Kindergarten classes, Transitional Kindergarten and Kindergarten teachers shall also receive music preparation time
- 31.3.5 The work hours of kindergarten/KPA teachers shall include teaming with other kindergarten/KPA teachers for sixty (60) minutes per day to prepare and present kindergarten lessons, or where there are no other kindergarten/KPA teachers to team with at the site, teaming with another primary grade teacher to provide instructional assistance as assigned by the site principal or a mutually agreed upon (teacher/principal) plan. Kindergarten/KPA teachers shall not be required to provide teaming assistance or the mutually agreed upon plan during parent conferences or minimum days.
- 31.3.6 If holidays, non-instructional days or minimum days occur on designated prep days, the prep will not ordinarily be rescheduled. If site scheduled events occur on a designated prep time, every attempt shall be made to reschedule lost prep time at the request of the teacher prior to the scheduled event. The current practice of rotating Monday prep by site annually shall be continued. Computer preparation time shall be reviewed annually. The District reserves the right to discontinue computer preparation time based on budget, space and schedule. The decision of the district will not be subject to the grievance process.
- 31.3.7 The District shall limit evening non-instructional supervision of students for K-6 teachers to not more than two (2) evenings per year per teacher.
- 31.4 Excluding emergencies, teachers shall be given a lunch period of a minimum of forty-five (45) minutes in grades K-6 free of duty or required travel.
- 31.5 Relief breaks shall be provided to teachers who have more than two hours without a scheduled break or passing time.

- 31.6 Unit members who travel from one school to another on a regular basis shall have the same rights to a planning/preparation period, lunch period, and relief breaks as do other unit members.
- 31.7 The District and administrators shall start meetings 15 minutes after the finish of school with the meetings lasting an average of one (1) hour and not to exceed one and one half (1  $\frac{1}{2}$ ) hours. Faculty meetings are not to exceed one per month unless administration and department chairs agree that another needs to be scheduled, 7-12, two per month K-6.
- 31.8 Participation by unit members on District committees shall be on a voluntary basis, with the exception of the GATE program, bilingual committee or other committees as required by law. The District shall notify the Association of impending District committees and solicit volunteers.
- 31.9 No unit member shall be required to participate in programs on Saturday or Sunday.
- 31.10 Any district required K-6 in-service programs will be included as part of the regular monthly staff meetings except in an emergency.
- 31.11 Assigned duties are those tasks that greatly enhance opportunities for students and add to the profession beyond the school day. Teachers are paid for an assigned duty. Assigned duties must be offered to the teaching staff before the position is offered to other individuals. If no qualified certificated employee applies the position will be offered to a qualified outside candidate. Assigned duties for which payment is received shall not count as an adjunct duty. The variety of assigned duties and the remuneration based on the established formula are contained in Appendices A, B, C, D at the end of this agreement.
- 31.12 Athletics will be offered during seventh period. PE credit may be offered to athletes. The Athletic Director will monitor and certify all sports rosters for credit.
  - 31.12.1 Coaches may coach on their prep periods.
  - 31.12.2 The site administrator has the authority on prep period assignments.
  - 31.12.3 It will be the goal of the site administrator to provide a balanced master schedule.
- 31.13 A coaching stipend will be offered for each sport as per Appendix A.
  - 31.13.1 The coaching stipend remains unaffected by prep, seventh period coaching, or

any scheduling situations.

- 31.14 Beginning with the 2006-2007 school year, newly hired Physical Education teachers may be required to coach up to two (2) Oakdale Junior High School sports or one (1) Oakdale High School sport for a maximum of ten (10) years.
- 31.15 The District and the Association shall mutually agree upon the school calendar prior to adoption.
- 31.16 The number of days for all schools shall be 182 days for teachers, which includes 180 instructional days, one (1) District/site staff development day, and one (1) teacher work day.
  - 31.16.1 183 days for new teachers hired into the District beginning 2006-2007, which includes 180 instructional days and three (3) work-days.
  - 31.16.2 192 days for counselors
- 31.17 There shall be five (5) minimum days scheduled for parent conferences in grades 1-6. These days shall be scheduled consecutively and will not include a student retention day. In addition, there shall be four (4) minimum days scheduled in grades K-12, the day before Thanksgiving break, the day before Winter Break, Open House, and the last day of school. The Junior High and High School shall have three (3) minimum days per semester for final examinations and additional minimum days for Back-to-School Night and the day before Thanksgiving. Teachers may leave at the end of the student contact time on minimum days except for staff development days.
  - 31.17.1 Beginning the in the 2022/23 school year. There will be seven (7) additional minimum days. Four (4) of these days will be for teacher collaboration/planning and will be developed by department chairpersons (7-12) and grade level chairpersons (K-6). Two (2) days will be used for District staff development needs. If the staff development days are not needed by the District, they will revert to teacher collaboration/planning. One day will be reserved for staff to complete compliance training requirements (such as but not limited to mandated reporter, suicide prevention etc.)
    - 31.17.1.1 For the remainder of the 2013/2014 school year and school year 2014/2015, five (5) of the seven (7) days will be used for District staff development needs in support of the transition to the Common Core, with the agenda being developed under the direction of the teacher committees. The remaining two (2) days will be for teacher collaboration/planning. This section (31.17.1.1) to sunset June 30, 2015.

- 31.17.1.2 For the 2016/2017 school year, four (4) of the seven (7) days will be used for District staff development needs. The remaining three (3) days will be for teacher collaboration/planning. This section 31.17.1.2 to sunset June 30, 2017.
- 31.17.2 If the District needs additional staff development time, this may be arranged with, and agreed upon, with the OTA President
- 31.18 Certificated employees shall not be required to substitute for another employee unless considered an emergency by the principal or his/her designee. For district or school initiated professional activities that would require a teacher to be absent from their assigned class(es) in which another teacher is asked to substitute, the teacher substituting will be reimbursed at 1/5 of the in-district substitute rate or the teacher may choose to receive comp time. Comp time must be used during the year it is earned, except as otherwise approved by the District. The use of comp time must be pre-approved. The administration of the comp time shall be done at the site.
- 31.19 Adjunct duties are those tasks that involve supervision or assistance to students and other district/teacher oriented assignments. A teacher shall not be required to perform more than four (4) adjunct duties at Oakdale High School, and two (2) adjunct duties at Oakdale Jr. High School and East Stanislaus High School.
  - 31.19.1 7-12 Duties shall be selected on the basis of seniority.
  - 31.19.2 Adjunct duties include, but are not limited to:
    - (1) Athletic contests
    - (2) Dances
    - (3) Musical and Performing Arts activities
    - (4) Club sponsor
    - (5) Extended field trips
    - (6) Long range committee assignments that meet beyond the work day
  - 31.19.3 Activities conducted as a club sponsor shall be awarded as an additional adjunct duty(s). Stipend positions are not eligible to be awarded as an additional adjunct duty.
  - 31.19.4 Adjunct duty jobs will not include any of the following: bus supervision, ticket selling, or a duty traditionally done by a uniformed peace officer.
- 31.20 At Oakdale High School, the department chairs and the Principal will meet with the Athletic Director to review the adjunct duty list. If the number of adjunct duty positions requires less than four per teacher, the number will be reduced by seniority.

- Adjunct duty signups will be conducted during the staff meeting on the teacher workday at the beginning of each school year.
- 31.21 Junior High instructors will be relieved of before and after schoolyard duties and detention.
- 31.22 The District will provide grade 1-6 relief by covering AM duty before school as well as PM bus duty after school. The teachers will continue to provide AM/PM recess on a fair and equitable basis throughout the district based on staffing and student schedule as assigned by the Site Administrator.
- 31.23 For any IEP/SST/504 meeting that extends the bargaining unit members workday in excess of an hour the District will compensate the employee at the Certificated Extra Duty rate for the additional time that exceeds the one hour.
- 31.24 Teachers at the East Stanislaus Continuation High School will teach four (4) periods and have one (1) preparation period. The workday must start by 7:40 am and may not end before 2:05 pm and staff meeting/in-service requirements for 7-12 teachers must be met.
- 31.25 The workday for Charter School Teachers is 385 minutes, which includes a 45-minute duty free lunch and a 10-minute break. The workday must start by 7:40 am and may not end before 2:05 pm and staff meeting/in-service requirements for 7-12 teachers must be met.
- 31.26 OTA represents Independent Study teachers. Full-time Independent Study teachers shall be placed on the teacher's salary schedule according to years of experience and units. Placement on the teachers' salary schedule shall be as follows: A teacher with a student load of 25 students (five students a day/five days a week) will be placed on the five period salary schedule; a teacher with a student load of 30 student (six students a day/five days a week) will be placed on the six period salary schedule. A teacher with a student load of 50 online students will be placed on a 5 period salary schedule; a teacher with a student load of 60 online students will be placed on a six period salary schedule. No current full-time teacher will be reduced to part-time unless necessitated by reduction in program. Full-time Independent Study teachers will receive full benefits.
- 31.27 Part-time Independent Study teachers will be paid the hourly rate (see Appendix C).
- 31.28 A seniority list will be established based on the teacher's first date of hire in the Independent Study Program in the previous Oakdale High School District or the current Oakdale Joint Unified School District.

31.29 Academic coaches shall be treated as if they taught six (6) periods daily.	

## **ARTICLE 32: SALARY SCHEDULE**

- 32.1 All cells on the 2023-2024 certificated salary schedule shall increase by 0.0% retroactive to July 1, 2024 to become the 2024-2025 salary schedule for all contracted certificated employees at time of board approval.
  - 32.1.1 In lieu of a salary schedule increase, all full-time bargaining unit members shall receive \$4,000 one-time, off the salary schedule payment for all full-time bargaining unit members at time of board approval. Any bargaining unit member who works less than full-time shall receive a prorated amount as a one-time, off the salary schedule payment.
- 32.2 If any other District employee (excluding the Superintendent) receives a salary or benefit increase, OTA and the District will reopen negotiation on salaries and/or benefits.

#### **ARTICLE 33: HEALTH & WELFARE BENEFIT**

- 33.1 The District maximum annual contribution will be as follows:
  - 33.1.1 Oakdale Union Elementary School District certificated employees who selected cash in lieu of health coverage as of June 1, 1998 will be able to continue selecting the cash-out provision with a continuing maximum annual contribution by the District in the amount of \$5,000. If the employee selects health coverage, that selection shall terminate the "cash-out" option.
  - 33.1.2 The District shall provide an annual contribution in the amount of \$6,458 for health coverage for single and/or employee-plus-one coverage. If the selected health and welfare coverage costs less than the District's maximum contribution, the employee may select to "cash-out" the difference in cost.
  - 33.1.3 For full-family coverage the District's maximum annual contribution for the level shall be \$7,210. There shall be no "cash-out" provision provided at this contribution level.
  - 33.1.4 In addition, the District shall provide a \$20,000 life insurance policy for each unit member. This policy includes a reduction in benefits when the employee reaches the age of 70.
  - 33.1.5 The parties agree to establish an IRC Section 125 plan for the benefit of its certificated employees.
  - 33.1.6 The District shall provide retirees with medical benefits for the employee only at the single party rate for the plan in which the retiree is enrolled at the time of retirement, or a minimum of the District's annual contribution amount for single and/or employee-plus-one coverage, whichever is higher. The coverage will be in effect for 10 years or until the qualification age for Medicare, whichever comes first. Teachers must work in the District a minimum of ten (10) years before receiving retirement medical benefits.
    - 33.1.6.1 If the retiree elects to obtain health coverage outside the District, the District will pay for coverage according to 33.1.6 not to exceed the cost of the outside coverage. The retiree must provide proof of coverage and cost to the District for payment. Retiree cannot elect to cash-out the difference between the outside cost and the District contribution amount.
    - 33.1.6.2 With employees that are hired for the 2019-2020 school year and

beyond, the District shall provide a contribution amount not to exceed the active employee rate for single-only coverage.

- 33.1.6.2.1 If the retiree elects to obtain health coverage outside the District, the District will pay for coverage according to 33.1.6 not to exceed the-active employee rate for single-only coverage. The retiree must provide proof of coverage and cost to the District for payment. Retiree cannot elect to cash-out the difference between the outside cost and the District contribution amount.
- 33.1.7 Both the District and the Association will study alternate health providers, with the District taking the lead for providing information and arranging presentations for the Unit's insurance committee and/or general membership review.

# **ARTICLE 34: PROFESSIONAL GROWTH**

3 <del>4</del> .1	The District will notify credential holders of their Credential expiration date on their
	annual contracts.

#### **ARTICLE 35: SALARY SCHEDULE APPLICATION PROVISIONS**

- 35.1 Placement on the salary schedule is based upon semester and/or converted quarter units received after the date of receiving B.A. degree and verified by transcripts. Beginning in the 2023/24 school year, a CTE teacher who possesses at least 5 years of industry experience (1000 hours equivalent to 1 year) and a valid CTE credential in their subject matter shall be considered commensurate with a teacher possessing a B.A. and shall be appropriately placed on the salary schedule. All units by said CTE teacher shall be considered equal to units to those of teachers possessing a B.A. and eligible for unit movement across the salary schedule.
- 35.2 All lower division courses and courses from a non-WASC or regional accredited college or university must receive prior District approval.
- 35.3 Only grades of "C" or better, or "Pass" in a pass-fail course, are acceptable.
- Work must be taken and sealed official transcripts received by the District on or before October 1 for credit for the ensuing year.
  - 35.4.1 Electronic official transcripts will be accepted as an alternative to official paper transcripts if they are submitted to the District HR Department directly from the college or university issuing them.
- 35.5 The units must be clearly and substantially supportive of the teacher's professional growth. Professional growth courses shall be defined as those courses which are within the field of education, methodology or subject matter areas which will contribute significantly to his/her position in the District and/or qualify the teacher for another certificated position within the District, or allow the teacher the opportunity to advance to a higher position in the District.
- 35.6 Units which substantially duplicate other units will not receive salary credit, unless the units are required by the District.
- 35.7 If the District pays for a required course, that course shall not be eligible for salary schedule placements (except as under 35.14).
- 35.8 If the District rejects units which are submitted by a teacher under Sections 36.2, 36.6, 36.7 of this Article, or at initial determination of acceptance of Master's Degree, the teacher shall have the right to request the opportunity to present the rejected units to the Unit Review Committee. The Unit Review Committee shall be selected as follows: three (3) members selected by the District and three (3) members selected by the Association. The majority vote of the Committee members shall be necessary to give the teacher credit for the units. The Committee shall apply the provisions

- uniformly for all bargaining unit members.
- 35.9 A maximum of fourteen (14) of prior service credit will be given to unit members who have maintained an approved teaching credential while teaching in a private or public school system. This provision does not apply to unit members hired prior to the 2001/2002 school year.
- 35.10 Credit for an M.A. degree shall be an additional 5% of the base salary, step 1-column 1.
- 35.11 If an employee completing the required units to move to a new class has been at the top of the previous class for more than one year, the employee shall be given credit for the appropriate years of service when moving to the new class.
- 35.12 Counselors shall be treated as if they taught six periods daily.
- 35.13 For any certificated employee that works more than his/her contracted days, when District initiated, a per diem rate will be paid. Otherwise, it will be negotiated.
- 35.14 Certificated employees who participate in trainings approved by the site administrator, will receive the following support from the District:
  - 35.14.1 Pay course, workshop, conference fee
  - 35.14.2 Reimburse mileage, meals, approved lodging, materials
  - 35.14.3 Provide time from regular activities
  - 35.14.4 Units earned will be given credit on the salary schedule. If the employee does not want to apply units to the salary schedule, the employee will be paid for actual in class/workshop time at the current extra duty rate.
  - 35.14.5 For the staff members who take a special certification test such as the B-CLAD, the district will reimburse any required fee for taking the test at the time the employee passes the exam.
  - 35.14.6 Courses taken, workshops attended, etc. will require advanced approval by the superintendent or designee.
- 35.15 Current year Salary Schedule; See Appendix D.
  - 35.15.1 Salary year for all certificated unit members will begin on July 1st.

- 35.16 Supplemental Pay (Extra-curricular or Co-curricular Contracts) see Appendix A & B.
  - 35.16.1 Participation in programs beyond the regular work day shall be voluntary and paid in accordance with the title of the activity and the number of positions listed in Appendix A and B of this Agreement. Supplemental contracts shall continue from year to year unless terminated in writing by either party. All such positions shall be opened to unit members before they are offered to people outside the unit.

#### 35.16.2 Outdoor Education:

- 35.16.2.1 Outdoor education is part of the 6<sup>th</sup> grade teaching assignment.
- 35.16.2.2 With site administrator approval sixth grade teachers who have attended the camp program may trade the entire week, or split the stay, with District certificated staff.

# 35.17 Salary Schedule Column & Step Management

35.17.1 Effective with the 1998-99 school year unit members who have served in the District in a paid capacity for at least 75% of the scheduled workdays shall qualify for schedule movement in the following school year. Unit members working less than 75% of the scheduled work year days shall receive credit for the percentage of time served each year and when completing an equivalent of 75% of the scheduled work days shall be entitled to schedule movement at the beginning of the next school year. Employees shall not be given salary advancement on their anniversary date or any date other than the beginning of their scheduled work year. Effective with 2001/2002 school year unit members who have served in paid certificated capacity in an accredited school for at least 75 % of the school year shall receive a full year of service credit.

# 35.18 Moving Compensation

35.18.1 For each move in and for each move out that involves a District initiated change in classroom, teacher will be paid for 5 hours at the Certificated Supplemental Extra Duty Rate, these hours to take place outside of the teacher's workday.

#### **ARTICLE 36: EARLY RETIREMENT**

- 36.1 A teacher may apply to the Board of Trustees for a Reduced Workload Program (Willie Brown Retirement). If eligible, required in Education Code Section 44922 and approved by the Board of Trustees, the teacher would work a fifty (50) percent schedule and both the teacher and the District would contribute to STRS an amount that would have been paid had the member been employed full-time.
- 36.2 A Retirement Incentive Program will be provided by the District for the 2024-2025 school year. Those employees eligible for retirement under the State Teachers Retirement System (STRS) for school members shall be eligible to participate in the District Retirement Incentive providing the following provisions are met:
  - 36.2.1 The employee must have completed a minimum of ten (10) years of continuous service to the District.
  - 36.2.2 The employee must have attained the age of fifty-five (55) years of the retiring year.
  - 36.2.3 To be eligible, the certificated employee shall notify the District Superintendent by Friday, February 28, 2025 of his/her intent to retire.
    - 36.2.3.1 The signed retirement letter must be hand-delivered to the Human Resources Department prior to the end of the workday on Friday, February 28, 2025
  - 36.2.4 This Retirement Incentive shall apply to those certificated employees 55 years of age and older.
  - 36.2.5 No certificated employee who is to receive Retirement Incentive payment may accept a position in the Oakdale Joint Unified School District or any other public school district in California. (Substituting or any other short-term contracts allowed by STRS and not affecting the retirement payments are exceptions.) If this provision is violated, the amount of the Retirement Incentive payment paid shall be returned to the District and subsequent payments terminated.
  - 36.2.6 Such incentive payments are not utilized in determining compensation for retirement benefit payment purposes.
  - 36.2.7 The amount of Retirement Incentive shall be determined as follows:
    - 36.2.7.1 Thirty percent (30%) of his/her current yearly salary for retiring

- between the age of 55 and including 57 years of age.
- 36.2.7.2 Twenty-five percent (25%) of his/her current yearly salary for retiring between the age of 58 and including 59 years of age.
- 36.2.7.3 Twenty percent (20%) of his/her current yearly salary for retiring between the age of 60 and including 61 years of age.
- 36.2.7.4 Fifteen percent (15%) of his/her current yearly salary for retiring at 62 years of age and greater.
- 36.2.7.5 Incentive will be based on annual base salary, stipends not included.
- 36.2.8 The employee may elect to:
  - 36.2.8.1 Receive all or part of the Retirement Incentive payment after date of retirement by December 31, 2025.
  - 36.2.8.2 Receive the Retirement Incentive payment in installments, the amounts and dates of which will be designated by the employee, so that the retiree does not receive in excess of that allowed by STRS regulation from public school employment in any fiscal year. Total Retirement Incentive payments shall be made within five (5) years.
- 36.2.9 In case of death of the retiree, the unpaid portion of the Retirement Incentive payment(s) shall be paid to his/her estate.
- 36.2.10 Retirees may continue the benefits of group rates for medical, dental, prescription drugs and vision programs as long as the retiree continues to reimburse the District for these programs. Retirees may continue other health benefit programs as long as the cost of such is reimbursed to the District.
- 36.2.11 This article, section 36.2, will sunset on June 30, 2025.

## **ARTICLE 37: CLASS SIZE**

- 37.1 The District shall review the leveling of all classes which will be maintained where practical and in accordance with State and Federal Law. The following will apply:
  - K-3 class size in excess of (24) except in music and physical education
  - 4-6 class size in excess of (30) except in music and physical education
  - 7-12 class size in excess of (30) except in music and physical education
  - 37.1.1 There shall be an enrollment committee at each school site to review leveling of class size and of special needs students as identified in 37.4. The enrollment committee will consist of administration, counselor(s), and Grade Level/Department Chairs. In the event one of these members cannot attend, they may assign a designee to represent them. Enrollment data will be shared with all committee members prior to the meeting for review. All site committees shall meet at the end of the second week of school to address leveling concerns at the sites. Three (3) weeks after the beginning of the school year, representatives from each elementary site will meet with the Assistant Superintendent Human Resources, if requested, to address District wide leveling concerns and to work together to level elementary class sizes across the District. When other enrollment issues are brought to the attention of a committee member, the committee will meet. At the secondary level, three (3) weeks at the beginning of the fall semester and by the beginning of the third (3) week of the spring semester, representatives from the secondary level (7-12) site will meet with the Superintendent of Human Resources to address District wide leveling concerns and to work together to level secondary (7-12) class sizes across the District.
  - 37.1.2 After the classes have been leveled and the total number of students in excess of thirty (30) per grade level or subject reaches thirty (30) district wide, a new class or section shall be formed provided facilities and funds are available. The enrollment committee will be informed in a timely manner of which course(s) of action will or will not be taken.
  - 37.1.3 Compensation will be given to any 4-6 grade teacher whose average class size is over 32 enrolled students per academic week (excluding the first two weeks of the school year). The compensation will be \$10 per week per student. Teachers are responsible for submitting a district designated form monthly to receive compensation. In order to receive the compensation, the form must be submitted within the designated payroll period and will not be paid retroactively. This starts during the 2021-2022 school year and will sunset at the end of 2024-2025 school year.

- 37.2 There will be a maximum of two (2) combination classes at each elementary site.
  - 37.2.1 Teachers in combination classes will not have yard duty.
- 37.3 The District will provide the Association a copy of the District grade level enrollment form on a monthly basis.
- 37.4 Clusters of students classified as English Language Learners, GATE, special education or as special needs with identified learning and/or physical disabilities shall be included in a review of class size. SDC-LH and SDC-SH students will not be considered as part of the classroom roster on record in grades TK-6th. Every effort will be made for the above listed clusters of students to be equally distributed and supported among the teachers. The District will provide bargaining unit members with data regarding student population demographics at the beginning of each school year and again in January. The District will make every effort to have equally balanced classrooms in terms of ensuring a diverse, inclusive, equitable, and safe learning environment for all students and teachers.
- 37.5 At Oakdale High School, the maximum class size for the Wood Technology classes and the Auto Technology classes shall be 28. Enrollment in Agricultural Technology classes will be limited to the number of stations available for students. No students may be added to these classes after the completion of the safety units which take place the first two weeks of school (unless the student transfers from another school where he/she was enrolled in a comparable class).
  - 37.6 The District will make every effort to follow the Stanislaus County Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) guidelines for loading standards.

#### **ARTICLE 38: SUPPORT PROVIDER**

Continuation of the Support Provider Program (Induction/PAR) is dependent on funding from the state.

- 38.1 Selection of Beginning Teacher Support Providers
  - 38.1.1 The District Induction Coordinator and the Human Resources Department will identify the beginning teachers who need to complete Induction training through the Stanislaus County Office of Education at the beginning of each school year.
  - 38.1.2 HR will send out an email to all Certificated staff seeking Induction Support Providers prior to the end of the previous school year. This email will indicate the intended positions support providers are needed to fill, when available.
    - 38.1.2.1 All requests from staff to be a Support Provider must be made in writing to HR prior to the indicated deadline date on the email.
  - 38.1.3 Support Providers will be chosen and placed according to site, grade level and/or subject area needs by the Assistant Superintendent HR, with site administrators' and District Coordinator's input.
- 38.2 Support Provider Criteria
  - 38.2.1 Any teacher/teacher-on-special assignment who meets the following qualifications may apply to become a Support Provider:
    - 38.2.1.1 Holds a valid California teaching credential.
    - 38.2.1.2 Has achieved permanent status (tenured) in the Oakdale Joint Unified School District.
    - 38.2.1.3 Has five years of recent classroom teaching instructional experience with the Oakdale Joint Unified School District.
    - 38.2.1.4 Is currently in a full time classroom teaching or teacher on special assignment position within the Oakdale Joint Unified School District.
  - 38.2.2 Support Providers shall serve for a term consistent with the program for the beginning teacher (up to two years).
- 38.3 Support Provider Program Stipends and Funding.

- 38.3.1 Each Support Provider will receive a \$3,000.00 stipend per beginning teacher (each Support Provider will not support more than two beginning teachers) over and above their regular salary. If a Support Provider serves less than a full school year, the stipend will be prorated.
- 38.3.2 Sufficient support funds should be retained to cover expenses associated with implementing the program. The amount will be determined by state fund allocation.
- 38.3.3 No more than 10% of the combined funding for the Support Provider stipend and support fund allowance may be used for administrative costs.

#### 38.4 Support Provider Duties

- 38.4.1 Exact duties will be established by the District Coordinator based on the state induction program for beginning teachers.
- 38.4.2 Possible duties may include:
  - 38.4.2.1 Provide in-service for staff.
  - 38.4.2.2 Assist probationary teachers on a weekly basis.
  - 38.4.2.3 Assist teachers to observe exemplary programs or to attend conferences.
  - 38.4.2.4 Arrange for classroom visits: Beginning Teachers may visit classrooms as approved by the site principal and the classroom teacher.
- 38.4.3 Support Providers will not evaluate other teachers.

#### **ARTICLE 39: COMMITTEES**

- 39.1 High School and Junior High Department Chairpersons will be elected bi-annually by the department members whose majority assignment would be within that Department.
  - 39.1.1 In the event that a department chair leaves their school site prior to the termination of their commitment, the remaining department members will revote for a new department chair, following regular department chair election guidelines. The tenure of the newly elected department chair will be the remaining tenure of the departed department chair, at which time a new election for department chair shall occur.
- 39.2 Elementary grade level chairpersons will be selected annually by their grade level peers with approval of the site administrator.

#### **ARTICLE 40: PAR**

#### 40.1 Program Components

- 40.1.1 The purpose of this Program is to provide assistance, renew quality teaching and offer remediation to permanent teachers whose performance has been evaluated as "unsatisfactory" in four out of six areas by the principal or designated evaluator. Teachers recommended to the program are viewed as valuable professionals who are entitled to have resources available to them to enhance continuous performance improvement. It shall be the obligation of the Peer Assistance and Review Panel to report the results of this intervention to the Board of Trustees of the District.
- 40.1.2 Assistance provided by the peer coach shall focus on the specific areas recommended for improvement by the participating teacher's evaluator based upon the "unsatisfactory" ratings in the performance evaluation that resulted in the referral to the PAR program.
- 40.1.3 Assistance and remedial efforts and activities shall be multifaceted, and shall be preceded by a conference in the spring of the year when the teacher received the "unsatisfactory" evaluation. The conference shall involve the teacher being referred, the evaluator who evaluated the teacher, and the coach to begin the development of an Individual Learning Plan. If the permanent teacher so desires, the Association shall provide representation at this meeting.
- 40.1.4 The course of assistance shall include one or more of the following:
  - 40.1.4.1 Multiple classroom observations by the peer coach.
  - 40.1.4.2 Assistance specific to the area of teaching methodology or instruction, or other areas deemed in need of assistance by the peer coach during the period of assistance.
  - 40.1.4.3 Opportunities for the teacher receiving assistance to observe exemplary teachers.
  - 40.1.4.4 District-provided professional development opportunities.
  - 40.1.4.5 Conference attendance, often in the company of the peer coach, to facilitate reflection on how this experience fits into the Individual Learning Plan.

#### 40.2 PAR Panel

- 40.2.1 The PAR panel shall consist of five (5) members, three (3) members chosen by the Association and the remaining two (2) members shall be certificated administrators selected to serve on the panel by the Superintendent. A quorum for the panel meetings shall be 4/5 of the membership. Decisions shall be made by consensus when possible. Should a vote be required, action must be based on an affirmative vote of at least three (3) of the members.
- 40.2.2 Teacher panel members will be selected by July 1 of each year and serve staggered terms of three (3) years. At the beginning of this program, the terms of the teacher members shall be one at 2 years, one at 3 years, and one at 4 years.
- 40.2.3 The PAR panel will establish the meeting schedule. To hold meetings, four of the five members of the panel must be present. Such meetings may take place during the regular workday, in which event teachers who are members of the panel will be released from their regular duties without loss of pay. If responsibilities extend beyond the regular workday, the panel teachers shall be compensated at the designated hourly rate.
- 40.2.4 Teachers who serve as panel members must be credentialed teachers with at least six (6) years of teaching experience in the Oakdale Joint Unified School District.
- 40.2.5 If a member of the panel leaves prior to the completion of his or her term, the PAR panel shall consist of five (5) members, three (3) members chosen by the vacant position shall be filled for the remainder of the term in the same manner by which the departed member was originally chosen or designated.
- 40.2.6 A panel member shall neither participate in discussion nor vote on any matter in which he or she has personal conflict of interest.
- 40.2.7 The PAR Panel Responsibilities:
  - 40.2.7.1 Establishing rules of procedure.
  - 40.2.7.2 Selecting a chairperson
  - 40.2.7.3 Providing annual training for PAR panel members.
  - 40.2.7.4 Create an application for Peer Coaches (in the initial year of the program)

- 40.2.7.5 Selecting peer coaches and assigning them to participating teachers.
- 40.2.7.6 Accepting referrals for permanent teacher peer assistance from principals or designated evaluators.
- 40.2.7.7 Sending written notification of participation in the PAR program to the participating teacher, peer coach, and the principal or designated evaluator.
- 40.2.7.8 Meeting to review the work of the coaches with their caseloads.
- 40.2.7.9 Reviewing peer review reports prepared by peer coaches.
- 40.2.7.10 Monitoring the progress of permanent teacher peer assistance, including making reports to the Board of Trustees regarding PAR program participants, and informing the Board of the names of PAR participants who have not demonstrated "satisfactory improvement" after receiving sustained assistance from a peer coach. All reports pursuant to this provision shall be made to the Board no later than February 15, or the school year in which the PAR program was utilized to assist the teacher.
- 40.2.7.11 The panel shall deliberate whether:
- 40.2.7.12 The teacher is now "proficient" in the areas evaluated, or
- 40.2.7.13 Along with input of the peer coach that further assistance and remediation will not be beneficial. Written support for this conclusion must be presented to the panel, or
- 40.2.7.14 The teacher would benefit from another year of participation in the PAR program.
- 40.2.7.15 Deliberations of the panel shall be closed and confidential. Panel decisions shall be based on the information provided by the coach, the principal/evaluator, and the permanent teacher or his/her association representative.
- 40.2.7.16 Neither the teacher, coach, nor principal/evaluator may be present during deliberations of the panel, which are confidential. The panel may request additional information from any teacher involved in the program.

- 40.2.7.17 The panel shall report their findings to the Board of Trustees.
- 40.2.7.18 Recommending a budget for the program, subject to Board approval. Expenditures for the PAR program shall not exceed funds that are available through the passage of AB IX without mutual agreement of the parties.

#### 40.3 Peer Coaches

- 40.3.1 A peer coach is a permanent unit member who provides assistance to a participating teacher pursuant to the PAR program. Peer coaches will possess the following qualifications.
  - 40.3.1.1 At least six (6) years of recent experience in the District as a teacher.
  - 40.3.1.2 Demonstrated exemplary teaching ability as per Ed Code 44500.
  - 40.3.1.3 Extensive knowledge and mastery of subject matter, teaching strategies, instruction techniques, and classroom management strategies necessary to meet the needs of pupils in different contexts.
  - 40.3.1.4 Ability to communicate effectively both orally and in writing.
  - 40.3.1.5 Ability to work cooperatively and effectively with others.
  - 40.3.1.6 Possess effective leadership skills.
- 40.3.2 The number of coaches shall be determined by the number of eligible participants in the PAR program and funding available from the state for the program.
- 40.3.3 A coach's term would be subject to annual evaluation by the panel. The documentation of such information shall not be made a part of the coach's personnel file, except upon written request of the individual coach.
- 40.3.4 Coaches will be selected by the PAR panel and assigned to assist another teacher who is in need of development of subject matter knowledge, teacher strategies, teaching methodology or instruction.

#### 40.3.5 Peer coach selection

40.3.5.1 A letter of vacancy will be posted at all sites and at the District Office.

- 40.3.5.2 Candidates must file an application with the Panel, and include references from at least two (2) people with direct knowledge of the applicant's abilities to be a peer coach.
- 40.3.5.3 Panel members may observe candidates for peer coach performing in their classrooms prior to the selection. Observations will be arranged with the site administrator and the candidate.
- 40.3.5.4 The panel shall establish additional procedures for selecting peer coaches, which shall be made known in advance to all candidates.
- 40.3.5.5 Selection of a peer coach shall be by majority vote of the panel.

#### 40.3.6 Peer coach responsibilities

- 40.3.6.1 Coaches shall have responsibility for up to three (3) teachers, each of whom shall receive a minimum of twenty (20) hours of assistance, which must be completed prior to February 15.
- 40.3.6.2 The peer coach and participating teacher shall prepare an Individual Assistance Plan which outlines the assistance to be provided as well as time lines.
- 40.3.6.3 Peer coaches will be trained to offer both peer assistance and to understand the specific functions of the PAR program.
- 40.3.6.4 A peer coach will provide assistance to a participating teacher in improving instructional performance. This assistance will typically include:
  - 40.3.6.4.1 Meet and consult with the principal or designee of the referred teacher at the beginning of the assistance program to discuss the areas of concern.
  - 40.3.6.4.2 Conduct multiple observations of the participating teacher during periods of classroom instruction.
  - 40.3.6.4.3 Demonstrate good practice to the participating teacher.
  - 40.3.6.4.4 Use school district resources to assist the participating teacher.

- 40.3.6.4.5 Monitor the progress of the participating teacher and maintain a written record.
- 40.3.6.4.6 Make status reports to the PAR panel.
- 40.3.7 In the event that a peer coach is required to work beyond the regular workday, he/she will receive \$25.00 per hour for all additional time. For purposes of training in the Peer Assistance Review process, peer coaches will receive an annual stipend of \$1,500.00 for training outside of the teacher's duty day.
- 40.4 Permanent Teacher Due Process Rights
  - 40.4.1 A participating teacher is a unit member who receives assistance and coaching to improve instructional skills and classroom management, as identified in the District evaluation form. Unit members who receive and "unsatisfactory" will be required to participate in the PAR program as an intervention. (An "unsatisfactory" is defined to be an evaluation in which the unit member receives unsatisfactory rating in four of the six evaluation areas.)
  - 40.4.2 The PAR council will assign a peer coach to the participating teacher. The participating teacher has the right to meet with the PAR council to discuss the assignment of the peer coach within two (2) weeks of notification.
  - 40.4.3 The participating teacher shall be entitled to review all reports generated by the peer coach prior to their submission to the panel and to have his/her comments affixed. The peer coach will provide the permanent teacher being reviewed with copies of the reports at least five (5) working days prior to any such meeting.
  - 40.4.4 The permanent teacher shall have the right to be represented in any meetings of the panel to which they are called, and shall be given a reasonable opportunity to present his or her point of view concerning any report being made.
  - 40.4.5 The permanent teacher shall have the right to timely progress reports.
  - 40.4.6 The procedures of the PAR process are subject to the grievance process, not inclusive of the content of the documents within this process.

#### 40.5 Volunteer Teacher Participants

- 40.5.1 A permanent teacher who seeks to improve his/her teaching performance may request the PAR panel to assign a peer coach to provide peer assistance. It is understood that the purpose of such participation is to provide peer assistance and that the peer coach play no role in the evaluation of the teaching performance of a Voluntary Teacher Participant. The teacher may terminate his/her participation in the PAR program at any time without a requirement to give a reason for said request.
- 40.5.2 Unless requested by the teacher, information obtained by the peer coach while working with the teacher cannot be utilized in the evaluation process and or as the basis for mandatory participation in the PAR program.

#### 40.6 Miscellaneous Provisions

- 40.6.1 Funds shall be set aside to allow for release days and/or conferences as developmental tools for teachers and peer coaches assigned to the program.
- 40.6.2 It is the intent of the District and the Association that this article remain in effect as long as specific state funding for the California Peer Assistance and Review Program for Teachers is received by the District. If state funding for the PAR program is eliminated, this article shall expire and have no force or effect without the need for further action by either the District or the Association. The District shall notify the Association in writing that the PAR program has been eliminated.
- 40.6.3 The District and the Association agree that this article shall be reopened if either the Education Code Section 44500 et. Seq. or the state's implementation guidelines or regulations are modified in any manner that adversely impacts a term of the Article. The parties further agree that this Article may be reopened at any time by mutual agreement.
- 40.6.4 Nothing herein shall preclude the Board from examining information which it is entitled by law to review in connection with the evaluation of and/or decision to remain in employment, probationary or temporary certificated employee.
- 40.6.5 Nothing herein shall modify or in any manner affect the rights of the Governing Board/District or teacher under the provisions of the Education code relating the employment, classification, retention or non-reelection of certificated staff.
  - 40.6.5.1 Nothing herein shall modify or affect the District's right to issue

- notices of unsatisfactory performance and/or unprofessional conduct pursuant to Education Code Section 44938.
- 40.6.6 The District shall hold harmless and provide a defense to the members of the PAR panel and the peer coaches for any liability arising out of their participation in this program as provided by Education Section 44503. All legal costs for the above will be borne by the District.
- 40.6.7 All proceedings and materials related to the administration of the program shall be strictly confidential. Therefore. Panel members and coaches may disclose such information only as necessary to administer the program.
- 40.6.8 Documents and writings related to an employee's participation in the PAR program are regarded as personal matters and shall be subject to the personnel record exemption of the Public Records Act (Government Code section 6250 et. Seq.)
- 40.6.9 Functions performed by teacher panel members and/or peer coaches pursuant to the program shall not constitute either management or supervisory functions as defined by subdivisions (g) and (m) of Section 340.1 of the Government Code.

#### **ARTICLE 41: PERSONNEL ACTION**

- 41.1 The Purpose of this article is to provide a corrective and remedial sequence of steps as a means of disciplining certificated employees if the need arises. Under the provisions of this article, the unit member shall not be disciplined without just cause.
- The District may discipline a unit member only for just cause. Discipline shall include warnings, reprimands and unpaid suspensions for up to nine (9) days.
- The following progressive discipline procedures will be applied, except where the serious nature of the offense allows the District to bypass a prior disciplinary step or steps. Serious offenses include, but are not limited to, cases involving gross misconduct, or conduct that constitutes a hazard to other persons. Whether or not the serious nature of the offense allows bypassing progressive discipline steps may be submitted to arbitration under Article 9 of the collective bargaining agreement.
  - 41.1.1 Subject to the exceptions noted above in the first paragraph of this section, the employer shall first issue a verbal warning.
  - 41.1.2 If the verbal warning is not effective, the employer will issue a written warning.
  - 41.1.3 Written reprimands will be imposed if the unit member has received a verbal warning and a written warning about similar actions within the last 24 months. (However, reprimands may not be based on warnings related to conduct occurring more than 12 months prior to ratification of the 2004-2007 collective bargaining agreement by the Board of Trustees.) The unit member will sign the reprimand to acknowledge receipt and a copy will be placed in the unit member's personnel file.
  - 41.1.4 Except in cases involving serious offenses as defined above in the first paragraph of this section, suspension without pay will not be imposed unless the unit member has received a written reprimand about similar actions within the last 24 months. (However, suspensions may not be based on warnings or reprimands relating to conduct occurring more than 12 months prior to ratification of the 2004-2007 collective bargaining agreement by the Board of Trustees.) A bargaining unit member may be given an unpaid disciplinary suspension of up to nine (9) days. The length of a suspension will relate to the severity of the action.
  - 41.1.5 The following process shall be followed in imposing unpaid disciplinary suspensions:

- 41.1.1.1 Prior to the imposition of a suspension under this Article, the bargaining unit member shall be given written notice of the proposed disciplinary action and the cause(s) thereof. The written notice shall include the specific date(s) of the proposed suspension, which shall be at least five (5) days after the bargaining unit member is given or mailed a copy of the written notice. The written notice shall include a statement that the bargaining unit member shall have at least five (5) days to appeal the proposed suspension.
- 41.1.1.2 If no appeal to the proposed suspension is filed by the bargaining unit member, within five (5) days after the bargaining unit member is given or mailed a copy of the written notice, the proposed suspension shall go into effect on the date(s) indicated on the written notice.
- 41.1.1.3 The bargaining unit member may appeal the proposed suspension, by filing a written appeal with the Superintendent or designee within five (5) days after the bargaining unit member is given or mailed a copy of the written notice. The Superintendent or designee shall investigate the matter, and shall determine whether to uphold, deny or modify the proposed suspension. The investigation may include meeting(s) with any relevant individual as determined by the Superintendent or designee or as requested by the bargaining unit member. The Superintendent or designee shall render a written decision on the matter, and shall give or mail a copy of the written decision to the bargaining unit member.
- 41.1.1.4 If the Superintendent or designee decides to uphold the proposed suspension or modify the proposed action to include at least one (1) day of suspension, the bargaining unit member may appeal the determination to binding arbitration. Such an appeal must be submitted in writing within five (5) days of the written decision of the Superintendent or designee. Failure to file such a written appeal shall constitute a waiver of the bargaining unit member's right to challenge the suspension.
- 41.1.1.5 If an appeal to binding arbitration is filed, the District may either defer imposition of the suspension until the conclusion of the appeals process, may allow the suspension to go into effect without pay, or may allow the suspension to go into effect with pay. If the suspension is with pay and the suspension is later upheld after the

conclusion of the appeals procedure, a future paycheck of the bargaining unit member will be docked to reflect the period of unpaid suspension. If the suspension is without pay and the suspension is later invalidated after the conclusion of the appeals procedure, the bargaining unit member shall be paid the previously docked pay amount, by separate check, within forty (40) days.

41.1.1.6 The appeal of the proposed suspension may be submitted to binding arbitration pursuant to Article 9: Grievance Procedure.

## **ARTICLE 42: SAVINGS**

42.1 If any provision of this Agreement is held to be contrary to law by a final court of competent jurisdiction, then such provision or application shall not be deemed valid and subsisting, except to the extent permitted by law; but all other provisions or applications shall continue in full force and effect.

## **ARTICLE 43: REOPENERS**

- 43.1 Reopeners: Each year for the life of the contract
  - 43.1.1 Salary
  - 43.1.2 Health and welfare benefits
  - 43.1.3 Two (2) existing Articles of each side's choice.
  - 43.1.4 Any Article by mutual agreement of the parties.
  - 43.1.5 Schedule of Negotiations

2023-24 Reopeners

2024-25 Reopeners

2025-26 Successor Agreement

#### **ARTICLE 44: SIGNATURE PAGE**

Executed by authorized representatives of the parties to this Agreement.

OAKDALE TEACHERS ASSOCIATION

Jonathan Byron Lead Negotiator

Oakdale Teacher's Association

OTA

OAKDALE JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Jose Sanchez

Assistant Superintendent

Human Resources

OJUSD

## **APPENDIX A: HIGH SCHOOL ATHLETIC STIPENDS**

ATHLETIC STIPENDS 2024-2025 OAKDALE HIGH SCHOOL

Effective: 7/1/2024

APPENDIX A

Current		A/1	Base =	60,252
SPORT	# OF	% OF BASE	STIPEND	COSTS
FOOTBALL - Head Varsity	1	12.50%	7,532	7,532
Asst Varsity	3	10.00%	6,025	18,075
Head Junior Varsity	1	10.00%	6,025	6,025
Asst Junior Varsity	3	9.00%	5,423	16,269
Head Frosh	1	10.00%	6,025	
Asst Frosh	3	8.20%	4,941	
FLAG FOOTBALL - Varsity - Girls		7.00%	4,218	4,218
Junior Varsity - Girls	1	6.50%	3,916	
CROSS COUNTRY - Boys	1	7.00%	4,218	4,218
Head - Girls WATER POLO - Varsity Boys	1	7.00% 7.00%	4,218 4,218	
Varsity - Girls		7.00%	4,218	
Junior Varsity	2	6.50%	3,916	
TENNIS - Boys	1	7.00%	4,218	4,218
Girls	1	7.00%	4,218	
ESPORTS - Fall	1	7.00%	4,218	4,218
Spring	1	7.00%	4,218	
VOLLEYBALL - Varsity - Boys	1	9.40%	5,664	5,664
Asst. Varsity	1	7.00%	4,218	4,218
Junior Varsity	1	7.00%	4,218	4,218
Frosh	1	6.75%	4,067	4,067
Varsity - Girls	1	9.40%	5,664	
Asst Varsity	1	7.00%	4,218	
Junior Varsity	1	7.00%	4,218	
Frosh - Girls	1	6.75%	4,067	4,067
BASKETBALL - Varsity - Boys	1	11.00%	6,628	6,628
Asst Varsity	1	7.00%	4,218	
Junior Varsity - Boys	1	8.20%	4,941	
Frosh - Boys Varsity - Girls	1 1	7.00% 11.00%	4,218 6.628	
Asst Varsity		7.00%	4,218	4,218
Junior Varsity - Girls	l i	8.20%	4,941	4,941
Frosh - Girls	l i	7.00%	4.218	4,218
WRESTLING - Head	1	10.00%	6,025	6,025
Assistant	1	7.00%	4,218	
Junior Varsity	1	6.50%	3,916	3,916
SOCCER - Head - Boys	1	8.20%	4,941	4,941
Head - Girls	1	8.20%	4,941	4,941
Head JV - Boys	1	7.00%	4,218	4,218
Head JV - Girls	1	7.00%	4,218	
BASEBALL - Varsity	1	11.00%	6,628	6,628
Asst. Varsity	1	7.00%	4,218	
Junior Varsity	1	8.20%	4,941	4,941
Frosh	1	7.00%	4,218	4,218
SOFTBALL - Varsity	1	11.00% 7.00%	6,628 4,218	6,628
Asst. Varsity Junior Varsity		8.20%	4,218	4,218 4,941
Frosh		7.00%	4,218	4,218
TRACK - Varsity	i	11.50%	6,929	
Assistant	4	7.50%	4,519	18,076
GOLF - Boys Head Coach	1	7.00%		
Boys Assistant	1	4.50%	2,711	
Girls Head Coach	1	7.00%	_	
Girls Assistant	1	4.50%	2,711	
SWIMMING - Head	1	9.00%	5,423	5,423
Assistant	1	6.50%	3,916	
Jr. Varsity	1	6.50%	3,916	
AQUATICS - Director	1	3.25%	1,958	
ATLU ETIC DIRECTOR	4	12.75%	7,682	7,682
ATHLETIC DIRECTOR TOTALS	1 69	12.7570	278,797	

Board Approved: 1/13/2025 Revised: 01/27/2025

## **APPENDIX A: JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL ATHLETIC STIPENDS**

ATHLETIC STIPENDS 2024-2025 JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL

Effective: 7/1/2024

Current		A/1	Base =	60,252
SPORT	# OF	% OF BASE	STIPEND	COSTS
FLAG FOOTBALL				
7th Grade	1	3.50%	2,109	2,109
8th Grade	1	3.50%	2,109	2,109
VOLLEYBALL				
7th Grade - Girls	1	3.50%	2,109	2,109
8th Grade - Girls	1	3.50%	2,109	
Boys	1	3.50%	2,109	2,109
BASKETBALL				
7th Grade Boys	1	3.50%	2,109	
8th Grade Boys	1	3.50%	2,109	2,109
7th Grade Girls	1	3.50%	2,109	
8th Grade Girls	1	3.50%	2,109	2,109
TRACK/CROSS COUNTRY				
7th Grade Boys	1	3.50%	2,109	
8th Grade Boys	1	3.50%	2,109	2,109
7th Grade Girls	1	3.50%	2,109	
8th Grade Girls	1	3.50%	2,109	2,109
SOFTBALL				
7th Grade Girls	1	3.50%	2,109	2,109
8th Grade Girls	1	3.50%	2,109	2,109
WRESTLING				
Head	1	3.50%	2,109	2,109
TOTALS	16		33,744	33,744

Board Approved: 4/15/2024

APPENDIX A

## **APPENDIX A: PLAYOFFS/EXTENDED COMPETITION**

Effective: 7/1/2024

Amount	Per	Qualifiers
\$ 303.00	Week	All coaches of CIF sanctioned teams which make it to the playoffs.
152.00	Week in which there is extended season competition	Advisors and directors who provide supervision in support of such programs.
226.00	Week	Competitions such as academic decathlon and Science Olympiad beyond the local level.

## **APPENDIX B: Extra Duty Schedule**

EXTRA DUTY SCHEDULE

APPENDIX B 2024-2025 Effective: 7/1/2024

HIGH SCHOOL - PAID 12/10 & 06/10		A/1	Base =	60,252
DUTY	# OF	% OF BASE	STIPEND	TOTAL COST
Music Production/Band	1	10.00%	6,025	6,025
Street Percussion	1	4.25%	2,561	2,561
Winter Percussion - Paid 6/10	1	4.25%	2,561	2,561
Drama Production	1	8.00%	4,820	4,820
Choir Production	1	8.00%	4,820	4,820
Science Olympiad	1	4.25%	2,561	2,561
Department Chair	12	4.25%	2,561	30,732
Section Allocations (\$5.00/sec)	Varies			
Spirit Advisor - Varsity	1	12.00%	7,230	7,230
Junior Varsity	1	3.00%	1,808	1,808
Frosh	1	3.00%	1,808	1,808
Yearbook Advisor	1	4.25%	2,561	2,561
Color Guard	1	5.00%	3,013	3,013
Winter Guard - Paid 6/10	1	5.00%	3,013	3,013
Guard Tech Fall - Paid 12/10	1	1.50%	904	904
Guard Tech Winter - Paid 6/10	1	1.50%	904	904
Academic Decathlon	1	4.25%	2,561	2,561
FFA	1	4.25%	2,561	2,561
Activities Director	1	7.50%	4,519	4,519
Frosh Class Advisor	1	1.25%	753	753
Sophomore Class Advisor	1	1.25%	753	753
Junior Class Advisor	1	1.25%	753	753
Senior Class Advisor	1	1.25%	753	753
Model United Nations Advisor	1	4.25%	2,561	2,561
Speech Team Coach	1	4.25%	2,561	2,561
Link Crew Advisor	1	4.25%	2,561	2,561
Technology Mentor	1	6.00%	3,615	3,615
TOTALS	37			99,272

JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL - PAID 12/10 & 06/10

DUTY	# OF	% OF BASE	STIPEND	TOTAL COST
Music Production/Band	1	4.25%	2,561	2,561
Winter/Indoor Percussion Coach- Paid 6/10	1	4.25%	2,561	2,561
Music Production/Choral	1	4.25%	2,561	2,561
Department Chair	7	4.25%	2,561	17,927
Section Allocations (\$5.00/section)				
Spirit Advisor	1	4.25%	2,561	2,561
Color Guard	1	4.25%	2,561	2,561
Drama Club	1	5.00%	3,013	3,013
Pentathlon	1	4.25%	2,561	2,561
Science Olympiad	1	4.25%	2,561	2,561
Yearbook Advisor	1	4.25%	2,561	2,561
Technology Mentor	1	6.00%	3,615	3,615
Activities Director	1	5.00%	3,013	3,013
TOTALS	18			48,056

ELEMENTARY - PAID 12/10 & 06/10

DUTY	# OF	% OF BASE	STIPEND	TOTAL COST
Science Olympiad Coach	4	4.25%	2,561	10,244
Music Production, Grades 4-6	3	2.50%	1,506	4,518
Outdoor Education	Varies	2.50%	1,506	Varies
Ag Day Chairperson	4	4.25%	2,561	10,244
Technology Mentor	4	6.00%	3,615	14,460
Grade Level/Spec. Ed Chairperson	32	1.25%	753	24,096
TOTALS	47	1999,000	1000	63,562

CHARTER - PAID 12/10 & 06/10

DUTY	# OF	% OF BASE	STIPEND	TOTAL COST
Science Olympiad	1	4.25%	2,561	2,561
Technology Mentor	1	6.00%	3,615	3,615
Yearbook	1	2.50%	1,506	1,506
TOTALS	3			7,682

Board Approved: 1/13/2025 Revised: 1/28/2025

#### **Appendix C: Independent Study Instructor's Part-time Salary Schedule**

#### OAKDALE JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Independent Study Instructor's Hourly Salary Schedule Effective 7/1/24

		Α	В	С	D	E	F
			15 units	30 units	45 units	60 units	75 units
Step	1	38.62	40.60	42.53	44.43	46.38	48.31
	2	40.60	42.53	44.43	46.38	48.31	50.24
	3		44.43	46.38	48.31	50.24	52.17
	4		46.38	48.31	50.24	52.17	54.13
	5			50.24	52.17	54.13	56.03
	6			52.17	54.13	56.03	57.98
	7			54.13	56.03	57.98	59.91
	8				57.98	59.91	61.86

- Placement on the schedule is based on semester units, upper division or graduate level, related to the teaching profession and received AFTER the date of receiving a Bachelors degree with verified transcripts.
- Teachers who have a Masters degree will receive an additional ninety (.90) cents per hour.
- 3. Units completed which have been approved by the principal, should be submitted to the District Office on or before October 1st of each year.
- 4. Valley Oak High School teachers are required to attend eight (8) hours of in-service training each year.

## **APPENDIX D: Certificated Salary Schedule**

OAKDALE JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT Certificated Salary Schedule (Including Masters)

Effective: 7/1/2024

		CERT	B (II)	C (III)	D (IV)	E (V)	F (VI)
		A (I)	15 units	30 units	45 units	60 units	75 units
Step	1	60,252	63,071	65,873	68,685	71,502	74,317
	2	63,071	65,873	68,685	71,502	74,317	77,116
	3	65,873	68,685	71,502	74,317	77,116	79,928
	4	68,685	71,502	74,317	77,116	79,928	82,746
	5	71,502	74,317	77,116	79,928	82,746	85,555
	6	74,317	77,116	79,928	82,746	85,555	88,360
	7	77,116	79,928	82,746	85,555	88,360	91,177
	8		82,746	85,555	88,360	91,177	93,994
	9			88,360	91,177	93,994	96,807
1	0				93,994	96,807	99,608
1	1					99,608	102,434
1	2						105,247
1	3						108,060
1	4						110,876
1	8	79,429	85,229	91,010	96,814	102,596	114,201
2	2	81,813	87,783	93,767	99,719	105,672	117,626
2	26	84,268	90,418	96,553	102,710	108,843	121,156
3	80	86,795	93,130	99,448	105,790	112,109	124,790

Masters: \$3,013

TRAD 182 Day Work Year

## **APPENDIX E: Counselors & Speech-Language Pathologist Salary Schedule**

## OAKDALE JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT Counselors & Speech-Language Pathologist Salary Schedule

Effective: 7/1/2024

		COUN A (I)	B (II) 15 units	C (III) 30 units	D (IV) 45 units	E (V) 60 units	F (VI) 75 units
Step	1	77,381	80,863	84,317	87,788	91,263	94,742
	2	80,863	84,317	87,788	91,263	94,742	98,195
	3	84,317	87,788	91,263	94,742	98,195	101,665
	4	87,788	91,263	94,742	98,195	101,665	105,146
	5	91,263	94,742	98,195	101,665	105,146	108,613
	6	94,742	98,195	101,665	105,146	108,613	112,072
	7	98,195	101,665	105,146	108,613	112,072	115,549
	8		105,146	108,613	112,072	115,549	119,026
	9			112,072	115,549	119,026	122,499
	10				119,026	122,499	125,956
	11					125,956	129,447
	12						132,918
	13						136,389
	14						139,863
	18	101,051	108,207	115,345	122,507	129,644	143,968
	22	103,993	111,362	118,714	126,092	133,440	148,197
	26	107,022	114,614	122,185	129,785	137,356	152,553
	30	110,141	117,963	125,761	133,589	141,386	157,040

Masters: \$3,013

Work year: 192 days

## **APPENDIX F: Agriculture Teachers Salary Schedule**

## OAKDALE JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT Certificated Ag Teachers Salary Schedule

Effective: 7/1/2024

		CERT	B (II)	C (III)	D (IV)	E (V)	F (VI)
		A (I)	15 units	30 units	45 units	60 units	75 units
Step	1	70,184	73,467	76,731	80,007	83,288	86,567
	2	73,467	76,731	80,007	83,288	86,567	89,828
	3	76,731	80,007	83,288	86,567	89,828	93,104
	4	80,007	83,288	86,567	89,828	93,104	96,386
	5	83,288	86,567	89,828	93,104	96,386	99,658
	6	86,567	89,828	93,104	96,386	99,658	102,924
	7	89,828	93,104	96,386	99,658	102,924	106,205
	8		96,386	99,658	102,924	106,205	109,488
	9			102,924	106,205	109,488	112,764
	10				109,488	112,764	116,027
	11					116,027	119,319
	12						122,595
	13						125,872
	14						129,152
	18	92,522	99,278	106,011	112,772	119,507	133,026
	22	95,298	102,253	109,223	116,155	123,090	137,016
	26	98,158	105,321	112,468	119,640	126,784	141,127
	30	101,102	108,481	115,840	123,227	130,587	145,360

Masters: \$3,013

Work Year = 212 days

## **APPENDIX G: Extra Duty payment Timeline**

November Payroll - Payable 12/10

Fall Sports Coaches	Full Payment
Department Chairperson	Half Payment
Music Production/Band	Half Payment
Drama Production	Half Payment
Science Olympiad	Half Payment
Spirit Advisor	Half Payment
Yearbook Advisor	Half Payment
Journalism Advisor	Half Payment
Academic Decathlon Advisor	Half Payment
Color Guard Advisor	Half Payment
FFA Advisor	Half Payment
Elementary Chair	Half Payment

February Payroll - Payable 3/10

Winter Sports Coaches Full Payment

May Payroll - Payable 6/10

**Spring Sports Coaches Full Payment** Department Chairperson Half Payment Music Production/Band Half Payment Science Olympiad Half Payment Dance Production Half Payment Spirit Advisor Half Payment Half Payment Yearbook Advisor Journalism Advisor Half Payment Academic Decathlon Advisor Half Payment Color Guard Advisor Half Payment Half Payment FFA Advisor **Elementary Chair** Half Payment

#### **APPENDIX H: Summer School Salary Schedule**

Oakdale Joint Unified School District Summer School Instructor Salary Schedule 2024-2025

	A/B	С	D	E	F
Units	0-29	30 - 44	45-59	60 - 74	75 +
Step 1	41.32	43.13	43.75	46.58	52.72
2	42.96	44.77	45.41	48.18	54.40
3	44.67	46.45	47.05	49.89	55.94
4	46.33	48.10	48.74	51.61	57.67
5	47.94	49.77	50.37	53.22	59.34

The schedule applies: Summer School and Extended Summer School.

An employee shall advance one (1) step at successful completion of each year in the District

A full time instructor will havefive (5) hours of student instruction time and will be
paid for 55 minutes of prep time.

Board Approved: 4/15/2024

This schedule applies: Summer School, Extended Summer School, Intersession and core academic areas for Century 21 Instruction.

An employee shall advance one (1) step at successful completion of each year in the District.

A full time instructor will have five (5) hours of student instruction time and will be paid for 55 minutes of prep time.

All summer school teaching positions will be declared "open" each year. Teaching assignments will be awarded to qualified candidates based on seniority and rotated on a yearly basis. Assignments will be offered at the top of the seniority list and move down until all positions are filled. The following year, positions will be offered starting just below the last accepted employee, by subject, from the previous year and then work down the list and back to the top until all positions are filled. It is understood that summer school positions will only be offered to qualified candidates.

Summer school sessions may be split between teachers upon approval of the summer school administrator(s).

#### **ATTACHMENT 1: Grievance Procedure**

#### **CERTIFICATED GRIEVANCE FORM – LEVEL 2**

Submission of Complaint – All portions of this section must be completed by the grievant.

Attach copy of Informal Level determination.

Employee Name:	Building:				
<b>Description of Grievance: (Attach information required by OTA Contract, Article 9.</b>					
Date(s) Cause of griev	ance occurred:				
Date(s) of Informal Me	eeting:				
<b>Specific Articles or pol</b>	eeting: icies alleged to have been violated:				
Relief sought:					
Date:	Signature:				
	is section, grievant shall distribute the original and 5 copies to the each to the superintendent/designee, the Association, and retain a ds.				
•••••					
Disposition by superin	tendent/designee:				
Date:	Signature:				

Upon completion of this section, principal shall retain original, present copy #1 to grievant, copy #2 to superintendent/designee, and copy #3 to the Association.

# ATTACHMENT 2: Certificated Evaluation Summary OAKDALE JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

## **Certificated Evaluation Summary**

Name: School: Grade Level:	Temporary:  Subject Area:		nary: 🗌 e:	Year: 1 🗌	2 Time:	Permanent:
ENGAGING & SUPPORTING ALL STUDENTS IN L	EARNING*			nd/or exceeds [ improve to me		•
<ul> <li>Using knowledge of students to engage them in learning.</li> <li>Connecting learning to students' prior knowledge, backgrounds, life experiences and interests.</li> <li>Connecting subject matter to meaningful real-life contexts.</li> <li>Using a variety of instructional strategies, resources and technologies to meet students' diverse learning needs.</li> <li>Promoting critical thinking through inquiry, problem solving and reflection.</li> <li>Monitoring student learning and adjusting instruction while teaching.</li> </ul> Comments:						
CREATING & MAINTAINING EFFECTIVE ENVIROR STUDENT LEARNING*	NMENTS FOR			nd/or exceeds [ improve to me		xpectations ot expectations
<ul> <li>Promoting social development and responsibility within a caring community where each student is treated fairly and respectfully.</li> <li>Creating physical or virtual learning environments that promote student learning reflect diversity and encourage constructive and productive interactions among students.</li> <li>Establishing and maintaining learning environments that are physically, intellectually and emotionally safe.</li> <li>Creating a rigorous learning environment with high expectations and appropriate support for all students.</li> <li>Developing, communicating and maintaining high standards for individual and group behavior.</li> <li>Employing classroom routines, procedures, norms and supports for positive behavior to ensure a climate in which all students can learn.</li> <li>Using instructional time to optimize learning.</li> </ul> Comments:						
UNDERSTANDING & ORGANIZING SUBJECT MAT STUDENT LEARNING*	TTER FOR			nd/or exceeds I improve to me		
<ul> <li>Demonstrating knowledge of subject matter, academic content standards and curriculum frameworks.</li> <li>Applying knowledge of student development and proficiencies to ensure student understanding of subject matter.</li> <li>Organizing curriculum to facilitate student understanding of the subject matter.</li> <li>Utilizing instructional strategies that are appropriate to subject matter.</li> <li>Using and adapting resources, technologies and standards-aligned instructional materials, including adopted materials to make subject matter accessible to all students.</li> <li>Addressing the needs of English Learners and students with special needs to provide equitable access to the content.</li> </ul> Comments:						
PLANNING INSTRUCTION & DESIGNING LEARNI EXPERIENCES FOR ALL STUDENTS*	NG			id/or exceeds I		xpectations ct expectations

- Using knowledge of students' academic readiness, language proficiency, cultural background and individual development to plan instruction.
- Establishing and articulating goals for student learning.

Teacher's Signature:

- Developing and sequencing long-term and short-term instructional plans to support student learning.
- Planning instruction that incorporates appropriate strategies to meeting the learning needs of all students.
- Adapting instructional plans and curricular materials to meet the assessed learning needs of all students.

Comm	ents:					
ASSESSING STUDENT LEARNING*				Meets and/or exceeds District expectations Needs to improve to meet District expectations		
Commo	Collecting and analyzing assess Reviewing data, both individuall Using assessment data to established Involving all students in self-ass Using available technologies to Using assessment information to	s, characteristics and uses of different ty sment data from a variety of sources to in y and with colleagues to monitor student blish learning goals and to plan, differenti essment, goal setting and monitoring pro assist in assessment, analysis and composition of share timely and comprehensible feed	nform i learni ate an ogress munica	instruction. ing. ad modify instruction. ation of student learning.		
DEVE	DEVELOPING AS A PROFESSIONAL EDUCATOR*			Meets and/or exceeds District expectations  Needs to improve to meet District expectations		
<ul> <li>Reflecting on teaching practice in support of student learning.</li> <li>Establishing professional goals and engaging in continuous and purposeful professional growth and development.</li> <li>Collaborating with colleagues and the broader professional community to support teacher and student learning.</li> <li>Working with families to support student learning.</li> <li>Engaging local communities in support of the instructional program.</li> <li>Managing professional responsibilities to maintain motivation and commitment to all students.</li> <li>Demonstrating professional responsibility, integrity and ethical conduct.</li> </ul> SUGGESTION(S) TO ENHANCE STUDENT LEARNING: 1.						
2. 3.	2.					
Recommended Unsatisfactory: If four (4) or more *Standards are marked "Needs to Improve," mandatory referral to Peer Assistance & Review (PAR) Program. Not Recommended (use with probationary or temporary only)  SUMMARY:						
1.	Walk Through Observation(s):	Date(s):				
2.	Full Lesson Observation(s):	• • •				
3.	Follow Up Conference(s):	Date(s):				
Evaluator's Signature:			Date:			
Principal's Signature:			Date:			

Date:

## **Attachment 3: Counselor Evaluation Summary**

## **OAKDALE JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT**

## **Counselor Evaluation Summary**

Name:	Temporary:	Probationary: Year: 1 2 Permanent:
School:		Date: Time:
ENGAGE, ADVOCATE FOR AND SUPPORT ALI LEARNING*	STUDENTS IN	<ul><li>Meets and/or exceeds District expectations</li><li>Needs to improve to meet District expectations</li></ul>
<ul> <li>Ensure all students are engaged in a system of Advocate for educational opportunity, equity at Advocate for the learning and academic successible lidentify student problems in their earliest stage Comments:</li> </ul>	nd access for all stude ss of all students.	dents.
PLAN, IMPLEMENT AND EVALUATE PROGRAM		Meets and/or exceeds District expectations
ACADEMIC, CAREER, PERSONAL, AND SOCIA OF ALL STUDENTS*	L DEVELOPMENT	Needs to improve to meet District expectations
<ul> <li>Demonstrate organization skills.</li> <li>Assist in the assessment of student academic</li> <li>Demonstrate leadership in program developme</li> <li>Conduct counseling sessions in support of academic</li> </ul>	ent.	ill building.
UTILIZE MULTIPLE SOURCES OF INFORMATIC AND IMPROVE STUDENT BEHAVIOR AND ACH		<ul> <li>Meets and/or exceeds District expectations</li> <li>Needs to improve to meet District expectations</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>Assess student characteristics and utilize the i</li> <li>Interpret and use student assessment data wit plans.</li> <li>Monitor student personal/social, academic, and Comments:</li> </ul>	h students and parent	r individual student growth and achievement.  nts/guardians in developing personal, academic, and career
COLLABORATE AND COORDINATE WITH SCH COMMUNITY RESOURCES*	OOL AND	Meets and/or exceeds District expectations
Participate in student support teams for studer	nt achievement	Needs to improve to meet District expectations
<ul> <li>Provide consultation and education for teacher</li> </ul>	rs and parents. of that include school s	staff members, parents, and community members.
PROMOTE AND MAINTAIN A SAFE LEARNING	ENVIRONMENT	Meets and/or exceeds District expectations

- Promote a positive, safe, and supportive learning environment.
- Support/participate in programs that address the personal and social risk factors of students.
- Support/participate in programs that reduce the incidence of school site violence.
- Incorporate models of systemic school safety that address elements of prevention, intervention, and treatment into the school system.

Comments:

DEVELOPING AS A PROFESSIONAL SCHOOL COUNSELOR*				Meets and/or exceeds District expectations  Needs to improve to meet District expectations
• • • Comm	Model effective practices and co Adhere to professional codes of	d pursue opportunities to improve. ontinuous progress in school counselinethics, legal mandates, and district p		
SUGG	ESTION(S) TO ENHANCE ST	UDENT LEARNING:		
1.				
2.				
3.				
	Recommended Unsatisfactory: If four (4) or more (PAR) Program. Not Recommended (use with pro		mprove," r	mandatory referral to Peer Assistance & Review
SUMN	IARY:			
1.	Walk Through Observation(s):	Date(s):		
2.				
3.	Follow Up Conference(s):	Date(s):		
Evaluator's Signature: Date:				Date:
Principal's Signature:				Date:
Counselor's Signature:				Date:

#### **Attachment 4:**

#### **REQUEST FOR TRANSFER**

Pursuant to the Collective Bargaining Agreement between OTA and OJUSD Article 10.3.2 teachers will need to submit a written request before the end of the school year in order to be considered for any potential vacancies.

Any unit member, who desires a transfer to another school site within OJUSD (not a change in grade level or subject at the same site) for the next school year, must complete this form and submit to the HR Department before the end of the business day on the last regular student school day.

Name:	
Present School Site:	Subject/Grade Level:
	Cellular Phone:
Alternative Summer Phone/Contact:	
Please indicate specific school and/or s	specific grade level you are interested in transferring to.
School 1. 2. 3. 4.	2 3
available or approved. All transfer req	ransfer request does not guarantee that a transfer will be uests will be kept on file until the start of the upcoming ed with the most qualified staff member according to Article
	a school/subject/grade you have requested, and you are ntacted by the Human Resources Department at one of the
Comments:	
Employee Signature	 Date